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Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act:

Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act:    Yes  ¨        No  þ

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act    Yes  ¨        No  þ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  þ        No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  ¨        No  ¨

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.    ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated filer  ¨ Accelerated filer  ¨ Non-accelerated filer  ¨ Smaller reporting company  þ
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act):    Yes  ¨        No  þ

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by persons other than affiliates of the registrant as of June 30,
2010 was $11,923,332 based on a sale price of $.35 per share.

There were 65,847,295 shares of the registrant�s common stock outstanding as of March 22, 2011.

Documents Incorporated By Reference

Parts of the Registrant�s definitive proxy statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 28, 2011 are incorporated by
reference into Part III of this report.
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Forward-Looking Statements

Statements in this report that are not historical fact are forward-looking statements that are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual events and results to differ materially from those discussed in this report. In addition, words such as �may,� �will,� �believe,� �plan,� �should,�
�could,� �seek,� �expect,� �anticipate,� �intend,� �estimate,� �goal� �objective,� �project,� �forecast,� �target� and similar words, identify forward-looking statements.
The risks and uncertainties include, without limitation, uncertainties related to estimates and assumptions generally; inflation and other changes
in economic conditions (including changes in interest rates and financial markets); pricing competition and other initiatives by competitors;
ability to obtain regulatory approval for requested rate changes and the timing thereof; legislative and regulatory developments; risks related to
the nature of AssuranceAmerica Corporation�s business, such as the adequacy of its reserve for loss and loss adjustment expense; claims
experience; losses; reliance on key personnel; weather conditions (including the severity and frequency of storms, hurricanes, tornadoes and
hail); changes in driving patterns and loss trends; acts of war and terrorist activities; court decisions and trends in litigation and health care and
auto repair costs; and other matters described from time to time by AssuranceAmerica Corporation in this report. In addition, you should be
aware that generally accepted accounting principles prescribe when a company may reserve for particular risks, including litigation exposures.
Accordingly, results for a given reporting period could be significantly affected if and when a reserve is established for a major contingency.
Reported results may therefore appear to be volatile in certain accounting periods. AssuranceAmerica Corporation undertakes no duty to update
Forward-Looking Statements.
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PART I

Item 1. BUSINESS
History

AssuranceAmerica Corporation, a Nevada corporation (the �Company�), is an insurance holding company that was originally incorporated in 1969
under the laws of the state of Utah. The Company, began current insurance business in 1998 through its subsidiary, TrustWay Insurance
Agencies, LLC (�TrustWay�), a Delaware limited liability company (formerly AssetAmerica Insurance Agencies, LLC). In 1999, the Company
formed another subsidiary, AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC (�MGA�), a Delaware limited liability company, that until 2003
provided all of the underwriting, claims and policyholder service functions for the Georgia nonstandard personal automobile program for
Gateway Insurance Company of St. Louis, Missouri. In late 2002, the Company formed its subsidiary AssuranceAmerica Insurance Company
(�AAIC�), a property and casualty insurance company and South Carolina corporation that focuses on writing nonstandard automobile business
and other specialty products.

Who We Are

We are a holding company which, through our wholly owned insurance company, managing general agency, and retail agency network,
underwrites and distributes primarily non-standard personal automobile insurance products to individuals. The Company offers non-standard
personal automobile insurance that is typically provided to insureds who are unable to obtain standard insurance coverage because of their
payment history, driving record, age, vehicle type, or other factors. These policies generally require higher premiums than standard policies for
comparable coverage. As of December 31, 2010, we offered products in ten states, including Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Indiana,
Louisiana, Mississippi, South Carolina, Texas and Virginia.

We began our current insurance business in 1998 through the acquisition of a series of retail insurance agencies located in Alabama, Florida and
Georgia, now known as TrustWay. In 1999, we organized MGA, which initially provided all of the underwriting, claims and policyholder
service functions for the Georgia non-standard personal automobile program for an unaffiliated insurance company. In late 2002, we organized
AAIC, which began underwriting non-standard personal automobile policies in April 2003.

Our Business

We currently have three revenue producing operating subsidiaries, the combination of which we believe is important to generating consistent
profitability throughout the insurance cycle: AAIC, MGA and TrustWay. AAIC and MGA constitute what we refer to as our wholesale
operations, while TrustWay constitutes what we refer to as our retail operations. We believe that this structure allows us to manage our growth
strategies and respond to changing market conditions more effectively than if we were only a risk-bearing enterprise or only a distribution
platform. The Wholesale operation utilizes sophisticated distribution systems that consist of over 2,700 agents. Our skilled territory managers
intensely market these agents to sell the AssuranceAmerica products and services. The retail division distributes its products directly to
consumers through its agency stores throughout the southeast.

2
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The following chart depicts our organizational structure and principal affiliates.

AAIC is a property and casualty insurance company domiciled in South Carolina that focuses on writing non-standard automobile business in
the states of Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Indiana, Louisiana, Mississippi, South Carolina, Texas and Virginia. As of December 31,
2010, the Company is also licensed to underwrite business in Arkansas, Illinois, Missouri, Pennsylvania, Tennessee and West Virginia. We
expect to enter the other states at a later time, provided that the underwriting environment remains positive and the capital and surplus of AAIC
supports such growth. AAIC cedes approximately 70% of its gross written premiums to seven reinsurers, six of which are rated A- or better by
A.M. Best and one of which is not formally followed by A.M. Best.

MGA markets AAIC�s policies through more than 2,700 appointed independent insurance agencies. MGA provides all of the underwriting,
accounting, product management, legal, policyholder administration and claims functions for AAIC and two unaffiliated carriers located in
Florida and Texas of the non-standard automobile insurance policies. The Company also provides claims services for one unaffiliated MGA in
Florida and receives a fronting fee on this business. Our own MGA receives commissions and other administrative fees from AAIC and the
unaffiliated carriers based on the amount of gross premiums produced for each respective company. Additionally, our MGA receives various
fees related to insurance transactions that vary according to state insurance laws and regulations.

TrustWay is comprised of 50 retail insurance agencies with 31 locations in Florida, 14 locations in Alabama, and 5 locations in Georgia.
TrustWay has been appointed as an agency by a number of unaffiliated insurance carriers and AAIC, and primarily sells non-standard personal
automobile insurance and related products and services. TrustWay receives commissions and various fees associated with the sale of the
products and services from its appointing insurance carriers.

Our Industry

Personal auto insurance is the largest line of property and casualty insurance in the United States. In 2010, this market was estimated to be
$160 billion as reported by the most recent A.M. Best industry data. Personal auto insurance provides coverage to drivers for liability to others
for both bodily injury and property damage and for physical damage to an insured�s vehicle from collision and other perils. Personal auto
insurance is comprised of preferred, standard and non-standard risks. Non-standard insurance is intended for drivers who, due to their driving
record, age, vehicle type, payment history or other factors represent a higher than normal risk. As a result, customers that purchase non-standard
auto insurance generally pay higher premiums for similar coverage than drivers who qualify for standard or preferred policies.

3
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Competition

Non-standard personal automobile insurance consumers typically purchase the statutory minimum limits of liability insurance required to
register their vehicles. Accordingly, we believe that we primarily compete on the basis of price, the amount of down payment required to bind
coverage, and payment terms. However, we also generally compete on the basis of consumer recognition, agency relationships, types of
coverage offered, claims handling, financial stability, customer service and geographic availability. Because of the purchasing habits of our
customers, the rate of policy retention is poor when compared to the retention rate of standard and preferred policies. Our success, therefore,
depends in part on our ability to replace insureds that do not renew their policies.

We currently compete with many national, regional and local insurance underwriters. The insurance underwriting and agency businesses are
highly competitive. Many competitors are national in scope, larger, and better capitalized than we are. Some competitors have broad distribution
networks of employed agents. Smaller regional insurance companies and local agents also compete vigorously at the local level. We believe our
focus on the non-standard automobile market gives us a competitive advantage together with competitive prices, payment terms and emphasis on
customer service.

While there is no established industry-recognized demarcation between non-standard policies and all other personal auto policies, we believe
that non-standard auto risks or specialty auto risks generally constitute approximately 15-20% of the overall personal automobile insurance
market, with the exact percentage fluctuating according to competitive conditions in the market.

The personal auto insurance industry is cyclical, characterized by periods of price competition and excess capacity followed by periods of high
premium rates and shortages of underwriting capacity. When underwriting standards for preferred and standard companies become more
restrictive, more insureds seek non-standard coverage and the size of the non-standard market increases.

Our Products

Our non-standard insurance products provide customers with coverage for the minimum required statutory limits for bodily injury and property
damage liability arising out of the operation of a personal passenger automobile. We also offer insurance coverage that affords protection for
collision and physical damage to the insureds� motor vehicles, bodily injury and property damage caused by uninsured motorists, medical
payments, towing and labor, and accidental death and dismemberment.

Target Market

The typical purchaser of non-standard personal automobile insurance is highly sensitive to price and payment terms, but generally insensitive to
insurer ratings. AAIC is not rated by A.M. Best. Our insureds typically purchase insurance from AAIC or one of its competitors because of a
lack of other coverage options and will switch to a standard provider when able. Generally, the resulting customer non-renewals have
historically been more than offset by new customers entering our markets.

A significant portion of our policyholder base is comprised of foreign nationals residing in the United States. This market demographic is
prominent in the southeast and, as of December 31, 2010, represents approximately 13% of our policies in force.

Wholesale Operations

Our wholesale operations are divided into four primary functional areas: Claims, Underwriting and Customer Service, Product Development and
Management and Information Technology.

4
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Claims

AAIC seeks to pay the claims it owes in a fast, fair manner and strives to have the lowest cycle time for non-contested claims (the period of time
from the initial claim report to settlement) in the industry. The non-standard personal automobile insurance market experiences a higher level of
fraudulent or inflated claims than the standard or preferred market. Our Claims Division takes a hard stance on the claims AAIC does not owe
and works to develop a reputation as a carrier that will aggressively fight such inflated or fraudulent claims. In order to accomplish these
objectives, the Claims Division seeks the highest caliber associate, paying above prevailing market rates in order to attract and retain
experienced professionals in every area of the Claims Division.

All claims are assigned to experienced claims personnel, and the files are directed immediately to handling adjusters to reduce cycle time. The
Claims Division is organized into various units to provide efficient file handling capability.

We make an effort to keep the file pending levels for our adjusters below industry standards to reduce errors. All adjuster authority levels are
determined based on the experience of the particular adjuster. We have formalized reserving and audit processes and we conduct periodic file
audits, conduct a monthly reserve reconciliation process and perform a complete periodic review of every pending file.

The Claims Division has a state of the art web-based claims system which is instrumental in increasing productivity by streamlining the claims
processes, and it provides a competitive advantage by utilizing immediate, real-time data for evaluation purposes and allowing the exchange of
information with fraud fighting agencies. Further, in late 2009, the Company opened a Florida claims office in order to service its customers and
reduce potential fraud and it is fully operational.

Underwriting and Customer Service

The Underwriting and Customer Service functions service the needs of our agents and insureds. Approximately half of our Customer Service
representatives are bilingual and we offer a Spanish language option to provide service to our Spanish-speaking agents and insureds.

We emphasize the use of automation wherever possible to minimize costs. We have a phone messaging system that telephones policyholders to
remind them of payments due and of pending cancellations. We send agents copies of policyholder notices electronically instead of mailing
them and agents can apply payments and process their own policy changes online, reducing the time spent by Customer Service performing
these activities.

Product Development

The Product Development and Management function is responsible for designing and pricing products, assisting with new product introduction,
monitoring product performance and recommending rate changes. This department uses information from our data warehouse to analyze and
monitor each product from the point of sale through termination and claims settlement, if any. We perform a market analysis for each new state
prior to expanding operations into a new state. As part of the analysis, we produce and review actuarial studies, analyze required coverages,
analyze rates and legal and competitive environment studies. After reviewing this data, we prioritize potential expansion states. In 2010, we
entered the state of Virginia and the product we offer is very competitive.

5
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Information Technology

The Information Technology department is responsible for the management of the information technology functions of MGA and AAIC and
also advises TrustWay on its information technology functions. This function is organized in three groups: Application Development, Business
Intelligence and Infrastructure Support.

With respect to the Application Development group our primary application is our policy management system (PTS), which was designed for
the non-standard automobile insurance industry. This software application is an end-to-end, enterprise wide, real-time, web-based policy
administration system. PTS manages and increases efficiencies among the most critical functions and throughout our entire organization.

By utilizing internet technologies, PTS provides a method to sell, quote, issue, and manage policies from any location. PTS centralizes
information and is designed to reduce workload, errors and costs associated with tracking and managing an insurance policy. It allows for
control of user access to the database and opens communication channels through all levels of the organization. This system allows for the
quoting, binding, initial premium collection, and printing of declarations pages, policies, endorsements and insurance ID cards at the point of
sale at the agent�s office.

PTS is designed to be scalable and is expected to be capable of handling millions of policies. This allows PTS to grow as our business grows.
The agreement with the vendor of this software package grants us a perpetual license to the source code and the ability to develop derivatives
and advance the product to meet business demands and react to changing market conditions.

The Business Intelligence group supports our central data warehouse. Our data warehouse integrates and cleanses data from multiple sources and
is the main repository of our Company�s historical data. It allows for complex reporting queries to be run without slowing down operational
systems. This area also provides the Company with real time business intelligence through a set of processes, architectures, and technologies that
transform raw data into actionable reports, gauge driven scorecards, and dashboards.

The Infrastructure Support group supports our voice and data networks, hosts our websites, policy administration system, the accounting system,
the claims administration system and the data warehouse. They are also responsible for the VOIP phone system and desktop support.

QTS is the third largest data center provider in the US and provides us our core data center services. We are conveying to our customers our
commitment to providing seamless, consistent access to our services. This quality data center is designed and constructed to provide mission
critical electrical, mechanical and high capacity network systems. This crucial design philosophy is built into our product to minimize service
disruption and ensure the highest level of customer service available.

Retail Operations

Our entry into the insurance industry in January 1998 was through the acquisition of 33 retail agencies in Florida. After accounting for
subsequent acquisitions through consolidations of agencies, we currently operate under the TrustWay brand through a total of 50 independent
non-standard automobile insurance agencies located in Florida (31), Alabama (14), and Georgia (5).

TrustWay mainly writes new business with four to ten top carriers depending upon the state or office.

We expect that growth in revenues from this segment come from increasing the average premium volume per location through the opening of
additional offices, selected acquisitions, improved marketing, retention efforts and placing this business with higher commission rate carriers.

6
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Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, AAIC seeks to reduce its overall risk levels by obtaining reinsurance from reinsurers. Reinsurance contracts do
not relieve AAIC from its obligations to policyholders in the event that a reinsurer is unable to make its payments to AAIC. The Company
periodically reviews the financial condition of its reinsurers to minimize its exposure to losses from reinsurer insolvencies. AAIC cedes
approximately 70% of its gross written premium to seven reinsurers, six of which are rated A- or better by A.M. Best and one of which is not
formally followed by A.M. Best.

Liability for Property-Casualty Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company�s consolidated financial statements include its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses (�LAE�). Our
objective is to determine that the total reserves (i.e., case reserves and incurred but not recorded reserves, or (�IBNR�) are adequate to cover all
loss costs, while sustaining minimal variation from the time reserves are initially established until losses are fully developed. The liabilities for
losses and LAE are determined using actuarial and statistical procedures and represent undiscounted estimates of the ultimate net cost of all
unpaid losses and LAE incurred through December 31 of each year. These estimates are subject to the effect of future trends on claims
settlement, among other factors. These estimates are reviewed monthly as new information becomes known and we are able to observe actual
loss development. Adjustments, if any, relating to accidents that occurred in prior years are reflected in the current results of operations and are
referred to as �development� of the prior year estimates. A detailed discussion of our loss reserving practices can be found in the �Critical
Accounting Policies� of the Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The accompanying tables present information concerning our property-casualty losses and LAE.

Reserves

AAIC establishes reserves for its estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses on an individual case basis for all reported
incidents. The reserve includes amounts for anticipated future claim development and losses incurred but not reported (based upon actuarial
analysis of historical data). Our claims system is designed to set up a statistical reserve when a feature is opened. These reserve amounts are set
by age of claim for each coverage and each state. The claims department conducts file audits, monthly reserve reconciliation and periodic
reviews of every pending file. Additionally, the reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses are reviewed independently each quarter by a
consulting actuarial firm.

7
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The following table provides a reconciliation of beginning and ending estimated liability balances for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008:

RECONCILIATION OF NET RESERVES FOR LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

(thousands) 2010 2009 2008
Balance at January 1 $ 41,973 $ 42,581 $ 33,661
Less reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses 29,710 29,747 23,250

Net balance at January 1 12,263 12,834 10,411

Incurred related to:
Current year 22,864 26,002 22,980
Prior years 2,158 (754) 753

Total incurred 25,022 25,248 23,733

Paid related to:
Current year (15,589) (16,195) (13,060) 
Prior years (11,795) (9,624) (8,250) 

Total paid (27,384) (25,819) (21,310) 

Net balance at December 31 9,901 12,263 12,834
Plus reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 23,410 29,710 29,747

Balance at December 31 $ 33,311 $ 41,973 $ 42,581

Total development consists of net changes made by our external actuarial staff on prior accident year reserves, based on quarterly scheduled
reviews, the settlement of claims for more or less than reserved, the emergence of unrecorded claims at rates different than reserved, and
changes in reserve estimates by claim representatives. Our net reserves developed unfavorably in 2010 compared to favorable development in
2009. In 2010, an increase in the number of late reported auto liability claims and an increase in the estimated severity on these claims for prior
accident years were primary contributors to the unfavorable development compared to what was originally estimated. The favorable
development in 2009 resulted from a decline in frequency, severity and lower amount of late reported claims for prior accident years than had
been previously estimated. We have not entered into any loss reserve portfolio transfers or similar transactions having a material effect on
earnings or reserves.

8
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The following loss triangle table represents the development of balance sheet liabilities for losses and LAE from the beginning of the Company�s
insurance operations in 2003 through 2010. The third line of the table shows the Company�s estimated liability for unpaid losses and LAE
recorded at the balance sheet date for each of the indicated years, after adjustment for the effect of reinsurance. This liability represents the
Company�s estimated amount of losses and LAE for claims that were unpaid at the balance sheet date, including IBNR.

ANALYSIS OF LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES DEVELOPMENT

(thousands)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
GROSS LIABILITY FOR

UNPAID LOSSES AND LAE(1) $ 4,499 $ 10,656 $ 15,110 $ 24,904 $ 33,661 $ 42,581 $ 41,973 $ 33,311
REINSURANCE
RECOVERABLE ON UNPAID
LOSSES 3,149 7,459 10,577 17,433 23,250 29,747 29,710 23,410

LIABILITY FOR UNPAID
LOSSES AND LAE � NET $ 1,350 $ 3,197 $ 4,533 $ 7,471 $ 10,411 $ 12,834 $ 12,263 $ 9,901

NET PAID (CUMULATIVE) AS
OF:

One year later 796 2,040 2,940 4,576 8,248 9,624 11,797 �
Two years later 967 2,393 3,744 6,605 10,650 11,819 � �
Three years later 992 2,580 4,373 7,217 11,353 � � �
Four years later 1,015 2,686 4,533 7,366 � � � �
Five years later 1,031 2,715 4,566 � � � � �
Six years later 1,031 2,722 � � � � � �
Seven years later 1,032 � � � � � � �
Eight years later � � � � � � � �
Nine years later � � � � � � � �
Ten years later � � � � � � � �

NET LIABILITY RE-ESTIMATED

AS OF:

One year later 1,171 2,783 4,691 7,394 11,164 12,080 14,421 �
Two years later 1,062 2,823 4,615 7,694 11,437 12,474 � �
Three years later 1,045 2,794 4,374 7,373 11,566 � � �
Four years later 1,051 2,785 4,573 7,406 � � � �
Five years later 1,172 2,730 4,592 � � � � �
Six years later 1,031 2,739 � � � � � �
Seven years later 1,032 � � � � � � �
Eight years later � � � � � � � �
Nine years later � � � � � � � �
Ten years later � � � � � � � �

NET CUMULATIVE $ 319 $ 467 $ (40) $ 98 $ (1,026) $ 754 $ (2,158) �
FAVORABLE/
(UNFAVORABLE)
PERCENTAGE(2) 23.6% 14.6% (1.0)% 1.3% (10.0)% 5.9% (17.6)% �
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The section of the table (labeled �Paid (Cumulative) as of�) shows the cumulative amount paid with respect to the previously recorded liability as
of the end of each succeeding year. The lower portion of the table (labeled �Liability Re-estimated as of�) shows the re-estimated amount of the
previously recorded liability based on experience as of the end of each succeeding year. The re-estimated amount is the sum of the paid amounts
above and the outstanding reserve for occurrences prior to the reserve date. The estimate is increased or decreased as more information about the
claims becomes known for individual years. For example, at December 31, 2009, we estimated our net unpaid losses to be $12.3 million. During
2010, these reserves developed unfavorably by $2.1 million, bringing the re-estimated net unpaid losses to $14.4 million, as shown at the bottom
of the table.

The Analysis of Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses Development table is constructed from Schedule P, Part-1, from the Company�s Statutory
Annual Statements as filed with the various state insurance departments.

The Company did not have any recent material changes in the terms under which reinsurance is ceded to others, changes in mix of business,
unusually large losses or gains, hedging or effects of currency fluctuations in its estimated loss reserves.

The Company did not have any differences between U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (�GAAP�) and statutory basis
property-casualty reserves for claims and loss adjustment expenses. In addition, the claim reserves have not been discounted on a GAAP basis.

State Insurance Licenses

AAIC, MGA and TrustWay operate under licenses issued by various insurance authorities. Certain employees must be licensed as insurance
agents or adjusters in any state where they perform a function requiring licensure. These licenses may be of perpetual duration or renewable
periodically, provided the holder continues to meet applicable regulatory requirements. The licenses govern the kinds of insurance that may be
written in the issuing state and the other services that may be provided. Such licenses are normally issued only after the filing of an appropriate
application and the satisfaction of prescribed criteria. All licenses that are material to our businesses are in good standing.

Supervision and Regulation

Insurance companies are generally subject to regulation and supervision by insurance departments of the jurisdiction in which they are domiciled
or licensed to transact business. The nature and extent of such regulation and supervision varies from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Generally, an
insurance company is subject to a higher degree of regulation and supervision in its state of domicile. State insurance departments have broad
administrative power relating to licensing insurers and agents, regulating premium charges and policy forms, establishing reserve requirements,
prescribing statutory accounting methods, the form and content of statutory financial reports, and regulating the type and amount of investments
permitted. Rate regulation varies from �file and use� to prior approval to mandated rates.

State insurance departments are charged with the responsibility of ensuring that insurance companies maintain adequate capital and surplus and
comply with a variety of operational standards. Insurance companies are generally required to file detailed annual and other reports with the
insurance department of each jurisdiction in which they conduct business. State insurance departments are authorized to make periodic and other
examinations of regulated insurers� financial condition and operations to monitor financial stability of the insurers and to ensure adherence to
statutory accounting principles and compliance with state insurance laws and regulations.

Insurance holding company laws enacted in many jurisdictions grant to insurance authorities the power to regulate acquisitions of insurers and
certain other transactions and to require periodic disclosure of certain
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information. These laws impose prior approval requirements for transactions between regulated insurers and their affiliates and generally
regulate dividend and other distributions, including management fees, loans, and cash advances, between regulated insurers and their affiliates.

Under state insolvency and guaranty laws, regulated insurers can be assessed or required to contribute to state guaranty funds to cover
policyholder losses resulting from the insolvency of other insurers. Insurers are also required by many states, as a condition of doing business in
the state, to provide coverage to certain risks which are not insurable in the voluntary market. These �assigned risk� plans generally specify the
types of insurance and the level of coverage which must be offered to such involuntary risks, as well as the allowable premium. Many states also
have involuntary market plans which hire a limited number of servicing carriers to provide insurance to involuntary risks. These plans, through
assessments, pass underwriting and administrative expenses on to insurers that write voluntary coverages in those states.

Insurance companies are generally required by insurance regulators to maintain sufficient surplus to support their writings. Although the ratio of
writings to surplus that the regulators will allow is a function of a number of factors, including the type of business being written, the adequacy
of the insurer�s reserves, the quality of the insurer�s assets and the identity of the regulator, the annual net premiums that an insurer may write are
generally limited in relation to the insurer�s total policyholders� surplus. Thus, the amount of an insurer�s surplus may, in certain cases, limit its
ability to grow its business. The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (�NAIC�) also has developed a risk-based capital (�RBC�)
program to enable regulators to carry out appropriate and timely regulatory actions relating to insurers that show signs of weak or deteriorating
financial condition. The RBC program consists of a series of dynamic surplus related formulas which contain a variety of factors that are applied
to financial balances based on a degree of certain risks, such as asset, credit and underwriting risks.

Many states have laws and regulations that limit an insurer�s ability to exit a market. For example, certain states limit an automobile insurer�s
ability to cancel or non-renew policies. Furthermore, certain states prohibit an insurer from withdrawing one or more lines of business from the
state, except pursuant to a plan that is approved by the state insurance department. The state insurance department may disapprove a plan that
may lead to market disruption. Laws and regulations that limit cancellation or non-renewal of policies and that subject program withdrawals to
prior approval requirements may restrict an insurer�s ability to exit unprofitable markets.

Regulation of insurance constantly changes as real or perceived issues and developments arise. Some changes may be due to economic
developments, such as changes in investment laws made to recognize new investment vehicles. Other changes result from such general pressures
as consumer resistance to price increases and concerns relating to insurer rating, underwriting practices and solvency. In recent years, legislation
and voter initiatives have been introduced, and in some areas adopted, which deal with use of non-public consumer information, use of financial
responsibility and credit information in underwriting, insurance rate development, rate determination and the ability of insurers to cancel or
non-renew insurance policies, reflecting concerns about consumer privacy, coverage, availability, prices and alleged discriminatory pricing. In
addition, during 2010, the federal government established the Federal Insurance Office in order to monitor the financial condition of insures. The
U.S. Congress and certain federal agencies will continue to investigate the current condition of the insurance industry.

In some states, the automobile insurance industry has been under pressure in past years from regulators, legislators or special interest groups to
reduce, freeze, or set rates to a level that is not necessarily related to underlying costs, including initiatives to roll back automobile and other
personal lines rates. This kind of activity has affected adversely, and in the future may affect adversely, the profitability and growth of the
automobile insurance business in those jurisdictions and may limit the ability to increase rates to compensate for increases in costs. Adverse
legislative and regulatory activity limiting the ability to price automobile insurance adequately or affecting the insurance operations adversely in
other ways may occur in the future. The impact of these regulatory changes on us cannot be predicted.
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Statutory Accounting Principles

The Company�s results are reported in accordance with GAAP, which differ in certain respects from amounts reported under statutory accounting
principles (SAP) prescribed by insurance regulatory authorities. Primarily, under GAAP:

1. Commissions, premium taxes and other variable costs incurred in connection with writing new and renewal business are capitalized and
amortized on a pro rata basis over the period in which the related premiums are earned, rather than expensed as incurred, as required by SAP.

2. Certain assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet, but are non-admitted and charged directly against statutory surplus under SAP.
These assets consist primarily of premium receivables that are outstanding over 90 days, federal deferred tax assets in excess of statutory
limitations, furniture, equipment, application computer software, leasehold improvements and prepaid expenses.

3. Amounts related to ceded reinsurance, such as prepaid reinsurance premiums and reinsurance recoverables, are shown gross, rather than
netted against unearned premium reserves and loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, respectively, as required by SAP.

4. Fixed-maturity securities, which are classified as available-for-sale, are reported at current market values, rather than at amortized cost, or the
lower of amortized cost or market, depending on the credit quality of the specific security, as required by SAP. Redeemable preferred stock,
which is classified as held to maturity, is carried at amortized cost. Equity securities are reported at quoted market values, which may differ from
the NAIC market values as required by SAP. The amortization of the cost of the other long-term investment for tax credits are amortized through
income tax expense rather than through investment income as required by SAP.

5. Both current and deferred taxes are recognized in the income statement for GAAP, while deferred taxes are posted directly to surplus for SAP.

Investments

The Company employs a conservative approach to investment and capital management intended to ensure that there is sufficient capital to
support all of the insurance premium that can be profitably written. The Company�s portfolio is invested primarily in investment-grade
fixed-income and equity securities.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had 250 full time and 1 part-time employees, whom we refer to as �associates�.

Item 2. PROPERTIES
AssuranceAmerica Corporation leases office space for its corporate headquarters located at RiverEdge One, Suite 600, 5500 Interstate
North Parkway, Atlanta, Georgia 30328. Effective October 1, 2009 the Company signed an amendment to extend its lease until 2019 under more
favorable lease terms. AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC., leases a claims office in the state of Florida. The TrustWay retail
operations leases retail office space at various locations in Georgia, Florida and Alabama under short to medium term commercial leases. The
above mentioned segments lease office equipment for use in its various locations. The Company believes that its existing facilities in the various
states are adequate for the Company�s current requirements and operations. Rent expense for long-term leases with predetermined minimum
rental escalations is recognized on a straight-line basis, and the difference between the recognized rental expense and amounts payable under the
leases, or deferred rent, is included in other liabilities.
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company is not a party to any pending legal proceedings other than routine litigation that is incidental to its business.

Item 4. REMOVED AND RESERVED
N/A

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Incorporated by reference from information with respect to executive officers of The AssuranceAmerica Corporation and its subsidiaries set
forth in Item 10 in Part III of this Form 10-K.

PART II

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT�S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company Common Stock is quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board (�OTC-BB�) under the symbol �ASAM.OB�. There is currently a
very limited trading market for the Company Common Stock. The following sets forth, for the respective periods indicated, the high and low bid
prices of the Company Common Stock in the over-the-counter market, as reported and summarized by the OTC-BB. Such prices are based on
inter-dealer bid and asked prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down, commissions or adjustments, and may not represent actual transactions.

Bid Prices
Quarter Ended High Low
2010 Fiscal Year:
March 31, 2010 $ 0.35 $ 0.16
June 30, 2010 $ 0.35 $ 0.18
September 30, 2010 $ 0.46 $ 0.18
December 31, 2010 $ 0.40 $ 0.11
2009 Fiscal Year:
March 31, 2009 $ 0.42 $ 0.10
June 30, 2009 $ 0.30 $ 0.15
September 30, 2009 $ 0.35 $ 0.30
December 31, 2009 $ 0.34 $ 0.17

The Company has never declared or paid cash dividends on the Company�s Common Stock and currently intends to retain any future earnings for
the operation and expansion of its business. Any determination to pay cash dividends on the Company�s Common Stock will be at the discretion
of the Board of Directors of the Company and will be dependent on the Company�s financial condition, results of operations, contractual
restrictions, capital requirements, business prospects and such other factors as the Company�s Board of Directors deems relevant. Additionally,
the payment of dividends or distributions from AAIC to the Company is restricted by the insurance laws and regulations of South Carolina (see
note 10).

At March 22, 2011, there were approximately 783 holders of record of the Company Common Stock.

13

Edgar Filing: ASSURANCEAMERICA CORP - Form 10-K

Index to Financial Statements 17



Table of Contents

Index to Financial Statements

Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
N/A

Item 7. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Results of Operations

The Company reported net income of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to $0.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009. The Company reported basic and fully diluted earnings per common share of $0.014 for the year ended December 31, 2010
compared to $0.007 for the year ended December 31, 2009. The pre-tax income was $1.9 million for the period ended December 31, 2010 and
$0.9 million compared to the same period last year.

The higher pre-tax earnings in 2010 as compared to 2009 primarily relates to a $3.5 million gain on the extinguishment of debt and a slight
improvement in the TrustWay Retail operations of $0.3 million resulting from cost reductions in selling and advertising costs, offset by lower
earnings within the wholesale operation (AAIC and MGA) of $1.3 million mainly driven by lower premium volume. The earnings were further
impacted by a $1.5 million goodwill impairment related to the Company�s retail operations.

Revenues

Premiums

Gross premiums written for the year ended December 31, 2010 were $100.9 million compared to $107.2 million in gross premiums written in
2009. The reduction in gross premiums reflects actions taken by the Company to improve profitability in underperforming market segments. In
Florida, gross premiums written declined by $8.7 million, the result of rate increases, implementation of tighter underwriting guidelines and
agency actions. In the states of Georgia and Louisiana, rate increases coupled with soft market conditions reduced premium volume by $4.7
million and $2.3 million, respectively. Partially offsetting these reductions was $6.4 million of gross premiums written from the state of
Virginia, which the Company entered in early 2010. The Company also increased its market penetration in the states of Texas and Alabama,
generating growth of $1.9 million and $1.4 million, respectively. The Company ceded approximately 70% or $67.8 million of its direct
premiums written to its reinsurers during 2010.

Policies in-force as of December 31, 2010 increased by approximately 2%, when compared to the same date in 2009 despite the 6% decline in
premium volume. This is primarily due to the mix of volume by state as the average premium per policy varies by state.

Premiums written refers to the total amount of premiums billed to the policyholder less the amount of premiums returned, generally as a result of
cancellations, during a given period. Premiums written become premiums earned as the policy ages. Barring premium rate changes, if an
insurance company writes the same mix of business each year, premiums written and premiums earned will be equal and the unearned premium
reserve will remain constant. During periods of growth, the unearned premium reserve will increase, causing premiums earned to be less than
premiums written. Conversely, during periods of decline, the unearned premium reserve will decrease, causing premiums earned to be greater
than premiums written. The Company�s net premiums earned, after deducting reinsurance, was $33.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2010, compared to $34.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.
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Commission and Fee Income

In our MGA operations, we receive managing general agent fees for agency, underwriting, policy administration, and claims adjusting services
performed on behalf of insurers. We also receive commission and service fee income in TrustWay on other insurance products produced for
unaffiliated insurance companies on which we do not bear underwriting risk. These products include travel protection, vehicle protection and
hospital indemnity insurance policies. Commission rates vary between carriers and are applied to premiums written to determine commission
income.

Commission income for the year ended December 31, 2010, was $20.9 million compared to $21.6 million for the same period ended
December 31, 2009. The $0.7 million decrease in commissions is primarily related to lower premium volume generated by the MGA, which
impacted commission income by $1.3 million, offset by an increase in the TrustWay retail agency commission of $0.6 million as certain
program revenue is fully recognized when contracts are sold instead of over the contract period. Also AAIC pays MGA commission on
approximately 30% of premium, which AAIC retains and this amount is subsequently eliminated upon consolidation.

Managing general agent fees for the period ended December 31, 2010 were $11.0 million and $10.3 million for the same period of 2009, an
increase of $0.7 million. The increase in MGA fees is primarily related to the mix of business by state.

Other fee income for the period December 31, 2010 was $0.4 million, a $0.1 million increase when compared to the same period last year. The
increase is primarily due to higher revenue generated from towing and rental add-on products offered to insureds in the retail (Trustway)
segment.

Gain on extinguishment of debt

On December 30, 2010, AAIC issued a dividend in-kind to its parent Company of all the 5,000 of the Trust�s floating rate capital securities, with
a liquidation amount of $1,000 per capital security (the �Capital Securities�) in the amount of $1,001,089 and the Company extinguished the
floating rate junior subordinated debentures of the Company (the �Debentures�) of $4,988,513, which resulted in a gain of $3,509,845 after
considering the unamortized issuance cost.

Net Investment Income

Our investment portfolio is generally highly liquid and consists substantially of readily marketable, investment-grade debt and equity securities.
Net investment income is primarily comprised of interest and dividends earned on these securities and related investment expenses, net of
realized investments gains and losses. Net investment income, net of realized investment gains was $0.7 million and $0.3 million for the period
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The better investment performance was mainly driven by an increase in realized gains on the
equity securities portfolio as investment market conditions continued to improve during the year.

Expenses

Insurance Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Insurance losses and loss adjustment expenses include payments made to settle claims, estimates for future claim payments and changes in those
estimates for current and prior periods, as well as loss adjustment expenses incurred in connection with settling claims. Insurance losses and loss
adjustment expenses are influenced by many factors, such as claims frequency and severity trends, the impact of changes in estimates for prior
accident
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years, and increases in the cost of medical treatment and automobile repairs. The anticipated impact of inflation is considered when we establish
our premium rates and set loss reserves. Our actuaries perform a rolling accident year actuarial analysis each quarter and establish or adjust (for
prior accident quarters) reserves, based upon their estimate of the ultimate incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses to reflect loss
development information and trends that have been updated for the most recent quarter�s activity. Each quarter their estimate of ultimate loss and
loss adjustment expenses is evaluated by accident quarter, by major coverage group (e.g., bodily injury, physical damage) and changes in
estimates are reflected in the period the additional information becomes known.

We have historically used reinsurance to manage our exposure to loss by ceding a portion of our gross losses and loss adjustment expenses to
reinsurers. We remain obligated for amounts covered by reinsurance in the event that the reinsurers do not meet their obligations under the
agreements due to, for example, disputes with the reinsurer or the reinsurer�s insolvency. The Company cedes approximately 70% of its direct
loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred to its reinsurers and the amount ceded for the year ended December 31, 2010, was $61.6 million
compared to $62.8 million for calendar year 2009.

After making deductions for the effect of reinsurance, losses and loss adjustment expenses were $25.0 million for the period ended
December 31, 2010, compared to $25.2 million for the same period in 2009. As a percentage of earned premiums, this amount increased for the
period ended December 31, 2010, from 73.3% to 75.0%, when compared with the same period in 2009. The amount represents actual payments
made and changes in estimated future payments to be made to or on behalf of AAIC�s policyholders, including the expenses associated with
settling claims. The year-over-year increase in the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio of 1.7 points is due to prior year loss development. The
unfavorable development in the 2010 calendar year results is heavily weighted to claims from accident year 2009. This adverse development is
partially offset by improvement in the 2010 accident year results, both in incurred severity (average cost per claim) and incurred frequency. The
improvement in severity was primarily in the property coverages and the improvement in frequency is predominantly in bodily injury and PIP
coverages.

Expenses

The selling, general and administrative expenses increased $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 when compared to the same
period of 2009. The year over year increase as a percentage of revenue, excluding the gain on extinguishment of debt, is 1.5 points. The increase
in expenses associated, in part, with additional investment of $1.0 million in our Information Technology, Product and Sales. Additionally,
TWAY retail agency commission expense increased $0.4 million related to the increase in program revenue. These increases were partially
offset by $0.5 million of management incentive expenses incurred in 2009 but not in 2010, as well as $0.3 million reduction in MGA selling
expenses resulting from lower premium volume. Depreciation and amortization expense remained flat year over year. Interest expense was
lower in 2010 as compared to 2009 resulting from the reduction in notes payable. Stock option expense increased $0.1 million as a result of new
stock issues in 2010.

Goodwill Impairment

The Company recognized a $1.5 million goodwill impairment loss after conducting a review of the carrying value of goodwill and other
intangible assets and concluded that the fair value of its retail operations was less than the carrying amount.

Income Tax Provision (Benefit)

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $1.0 million, and consists of federal and state income taxes at an
effective rate of 53.8%. The Company had a tax expense of $0.4 million for the period ended December 31, 2009, representing an effective tax
rate of 50%. The effective tax rate increase in 2010 is mainly due to the impact of the permanent differences for goodwill and stock options in
2010.
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Financial Condition

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had investments and cash of $21.9 million, compared to $18.9 million as of December 31, 2009. The
Company�s investment strategy is to be invested in highly liquid short-term investments and equity securities as well as investing in bonds with
short durations in order to meet its insurance obligations. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company had $10.3 million in cash and
short-term investments, which included $1.8 million of cash restricted to provide security for certain reinsurance reserve obligations. The equity
security portfolio amounted to $2.2 million and is diversified amongst various industries. The Company�s long term investments of $8.6 million
are spread among direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury and those securities unconditionally guaranteed as to the payment of principal and
interest by the United States government or any agency thereof and in corporate bonds. The other long term investments of $0.7 million
represents low income housing credits, which will be used to offset the Company�s tax liability.

The Company�s investment activities are made in accordance with the Company�s investment policy. The objectives of the investment policy are
to obtain favorable after-tax returns on investments through a diversified portfolio of fixed income and equity. The Company�s investment
criteria and practices reflect the short-term duration of its contractual obligations with policyholders and regulators. Tax considerations include
federal and state income tax as well as premium tax abatement and credit opportunities offered to insurance companies in the states where AAIC
writes policies.

Premiums receivable as of December 31, 2010, decreased $2.1 million to $33.1 million compared to $35.2 million as of December 31, 2009.
The balance represents amounts due from AAIC�s insureds and the decrease is directly attributable to the decrease in AAIC�s premium writings
during 2010. The Company�s policy is to write off receivable balances immediately upon cancellation or expiration, and the Company does not
consider an allowance for doubtful accounts to be necessary.

Reinsurance recoverables as of December 31, 2010, decreased $9.8 million, to $34.0 million compared to $43.8 million as of December 31,
2009. The decrease is directly related to AAIC�s release of ceded reserves associated with the Company�s strategy to accelerate the settlement of
claims in the amount of $6.4 million and reinsurance recoverable on paid losses of $3.4 million. AAIC maintains a quota-share reinsurance
treaty with its reinsurers in which it cedes approximately 70% of both premiums and losses. The $34.0 million represents the reinsurers� portion
of losses and loss adjustment expense, both paid and unpaid.

Prepaid reinsurance premiums as of December 31, 2010, decreased $1.5 million to $23.6 million compared to $25.1 million as of December 31,
2009. The decrease results from AAIC�s decline in premium growth and represents premiums ceded to its reinsurers which have not been fully
earned.

Property and equipment, net of depreciation, increased $0.1 million to $2.1 million as of December 31, 2010, compared to $2.0 million as of
December 31, 2009. The increase is attributable to capitalized software of $0.2 million related to the development of a web based quoting
technology, and normal operational software and hardware purchases of $0.8 million, offset by $0.7 million of depreciation on existing
computer software and hardware, furniture and leasehold improvements in both its agencies and corporate headquarters.

Prepaid expenses as of December 31, 2010, increased $0.2 million to $0.7 as of December 31, 2010, compared to $0.5 million as of
December 31, 2009. The increase in prepaid was mainly due to $0.1 million of prefunding of operational expenses and $0.1 million related to
prepaid advertising costs.

Other receivables as of December 31, 2010 remained flat overall when compared to December 31, 2009. The balances represent TrustWay
receivables from insurance carriers for direct bill commissions, which increased $0.3 million, offset by $0.3 million in collections for balances
due to MGA from insurance carriers for amounts owed in accordance with the terms of its managing general agency agreements.
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Intangible assets as of December 31, 2010, decreased $1.5 million to $6.0 million from the balance of $7.5 million as of December 31, 2009.
This decrease is mainly related to the goodwill impairment of $1.5 million mentioned previously. Further, the Company had acquisitions during
the year of $0.4 million, which was offset by $0.4 million of amortization.

Prepaid income taxes decreased by $0.2 as of December 31, 2010 to $0.1 million from $0.3 million as of December 31, 2009. The tax benefit
mainly resulted from a lower utilization of net operating loss carry-forwards as compared to the prior year.

Deferred tax assets decreased $1.1 million to $1.8 million as of December 31, 2010, compared to the balance of $2.9 million as of December 31,
2009. This decrease primarily related to the tax deferment of the gain on the extinguishment of debt during 2010.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses as of December 31, 2010, increased approximately $0.2 million from December 31, 2009 to
$8.8 million from $8.6 million. The increase is primarily due to $0.1 million in accounts payable and accrued expenses for payroll, $0.2 million
for an amount due to former owners related to acquisitions, $0.3 million due to carriers, offset by a $0.4 million decrease in deferred revenue.

Unearned premium as of December 31, 2010 decreased $1.7 million to $34.2 million as of December 31, 2010 from $35.9 million as of
December 31, 2009, and represents premiums written but not earned. This is directly attributable to the decrease in AAIC�s premium writings
during 2010.

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses decreased $8.7 million to $33.3 million as of December 31, 2010 from $42.0 million at
December 31, 2009. This amount represents management�s estimates of future amounts needed to pay claims and related expenses. The decrease
is primarily driven by the Company�s strategy to settle claims quicker, thereby reducing future loss exposure.

Reinsurance payable as of December 31, 2010 increased $0.9 million to $29.4 million, compared to $28.5 million as of December 31, 2009. The
amount represents premiums owed to the Company�s reinsurers. AAIC maintains seven quota-share reinsurance treaties with its reinsurers in
which it cedes approximately 70% of the both premiums and losses for the majority of its states. The increase is attributable to a reimbursement
for premiums received from reinsurers of $3.0 million, offset by $2.0 million due to lower AAIC�s premium writings in Florida, Georgia and
Louisiana.

Provisional commission reserves represent the difference between our minimum ceding commission and the provisional amount paid by the
reinsurers. These balances as of December 31, 2010 decreased $0.3 million to $3.3 million, compared to the balance at December 31, 2009 of
$3.6 million. The decrease is related to a decline in AAIC premium writings.

Notes payable as of December 31, 2010, decreased $0.6 million to $0.2 million compared to $0.8 million as of December 31, 2009. The change
resulted primarily from the final payments applied to the principal balances payable on promissory notes to the Company�s Chairman.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2010, was $5.1 million compared to net cash used by operating
activities of $0.8 million for the same period of 2009. The increase is driven primarily by $3.0 million reimbursement received from reinsurers
and $2.9 million increase in premiums collected, partly offset by higher claims paid.

Investing activities used for the year ended December 31, 2010 amounted to $2.5 million as compared to $1.8 million used as of December 31,
2009. The increase in the amount used was mainly attributable to higher
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net purchases of investments in the amount of $1.8 million, $0.6 million increase in purchases of computer software and hardware and leasehold
improvements in our headquarters and in Trust Way and $0.1 million in acquisitions, offset by $1.8 million of cash transferred to restricted cash
in the prior year.

Financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 included debt repayments in the amount of $0.6.

On June 30, 2010, the Company entered into a First Amendment Agreement (the �First Amendment�) to the Loan Agreement between the
Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (as successor in interest by merger to Wachovia Bank, N.A.) (the �Lender�). The First Amendment amends
the Loan Agreement, dated July 17, 2009, between the Company and the Lender (the �Loan Agreement�).

The First Amendment extends the maturity date for the facility to July 16, 2011. The proceeds of the facility may be used for funding certain
permitted acquisitions, funding short-term loans to the Company�s wholly owned subsidiary, AAIC, or for working capital or general corporate
needs in the ordinary course of business. When the facility matures, the Company will still be able to meet its obligations if the line of credit is
not renewed. The credit facility is secured by a pledge of the Company�s ownership interests in two of the Company�s subsidiaries, TrustWay and
MGA, and is guaranteed by the same entities. In addition, TrustWay pledged its ownership interest in TrustWay T.E.A.M., Inc., which is also a
guarantor.

The Loan Agreement includes customary covenants, including financial covenants regarding minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and
minimum net worth. As of December 31, 2010, management believes the Company was in compliance with all these covenants. The First
Amendment provides that the facility shall be repaid in full and no loans under the facility may be outstanding for at least one period of 30
consecutive days during each 12-month period in which the Loan Agreement is in effect. In addition, the Company�s minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio, which was 1.35 under the Loan Agreement, decreases to 1.10 for each of the fiscal quarters ended June 30, 2010, and
September 30, 2010 and increases to 1.25 for each subsequent fiscal quarter. The interest rate is 3.00% plus 90-day LIBOR (3.3003%
December 31, 2010) due and payable monthly. As of December 31, 2010, there is $1.5 million in borrowings outstanding under the credit
agreement.

In the past the Company received loans from its Chairman and former Division President of the Company to meet some of its financial
obligations. Hence, the Company�s related party debt consists of unsecured promissory notes payable to its Chairman. The promissory notes
carried an interest rate of 8% per annum and provided for the repayment of principal on an annual basis. The above mentioned notes payable
were fully paid off as of June 30, 2010. The Company�s liquidity and capital needs in the future will be met through premium, commission and
fee income.

On December 30, 2010, AAIC issued a dividend in-kind to its parent Company of all the Capital Securities issued by the Trust in the amount of
$1,001,089 and the Company extinguished the related Junior Subordinated Debentures of $4,988,513, which resulted in a gain of $3,509,845.
On March 10, 2009, AAIC purchased all of the Capital Securities issued by the Trust at a discounted price of $1,000,000 from the non-affiliated
holder of those securities. The discount was accreted to interest income over the remaining life of the Capital Securities using the interest
method. The purchase resulted in an increase in our investment portfolio for redeemable preferred stock in the amount of $1,001,089.

On December 22, 2005, the Company consummated the private placement of 5,000 of the Trust�s floating rate capital securities, with a
liquidation amount of $1,000 per capital security (the �Capital Securities�). In connection with the Trust�s issuance and sale of the Capital
Securities, the Company purchased from the Trust 155 of the Trust�s floating rate common securities, with a liquidation amount of $1,000 per
common security (the �Common Securities�). The Trust used the proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Capital Securities and the Common
Securities to purchase $5,155,000 in aggregate principal amount of the floating rate junior subordinated debentures of the Company (the
�Debentures�). The Capital Securities mature on December 31, 2035. The Capital Securities require quarterly distributions by the Trust to the
holders of the
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Capital Securities, at a floating rate of three-month LIBOR plus 5.75% per annum, reset quarterly. Distributions are cumulative and will accrue
from the date of original issuance but may be deferred for a period of up to 20 consecutive quarterly interest payment periods, if the Company
exercises its right under the Indenture to defer the payment of interest on the Debentures.

To support Company growth, the Company maintains a highly liquid investment portfolio and closely manages capital requirements. AAIC is
required by the state of South Carolina to maintain minimum Statutory Capital and Surplus of $3.0 million. As of December 31, 2010, AAIC�s
statutory Capital and Surplus was $12.1 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Loss and LAE Reserves

AssuranceAmerica is required to make certain estimates and assumptions when preparing its financial statements and accompanying notes in
accordance with GAAP. One area which requires estimations and assumptions is the establishment of loss and LAE reserves. Loss and LAE
reserves are established to reflect the estimated costs of paying claims and claims expenses under insurance policies we have issued. These
reserves are an approximation of amounts necessary to settle all outstanding claims, including claims of which we are aware and claims that
have been incurred but not reported (�IBNR�) as of the financial statement date.

Loss and LAE reserves are determined using actuarial and statistical procedures and represent undiscounted estimates of the ultimate net cost of
all unpaid losses and LAE incurred through December 31 of each year. When establishing loss and LAE reserves, the Company considers its
historical loss experience and current trends or assumptions, particularly those relating to the following factors:

� Claims settlement and payment practices;

� Industry averages and average paid losses by state and other geographical regions;

� Coverage limits and deductibles;

� Inflation and changes in automobile repair costs, medical costs and industry averages; and

� Legal and regulatory trends affecting claims settlements and average legal defense costs by state and other geographical regions as
they relate to personal injury protection (PIP) and bodily injury.

The Company considers its historical loss experience and the factors set forth above at a state, product and line of business level to estimate its
loss and LAE reserves. The Company reviews its loss and LAE reserves by line of business on a monthly basis as new information becomes
known and it is able to observe actual loss development. Our statistical average reserves are reviewed, at a minimum, on a semiannual basis. If
emerging issues relating to a product or state necessitate a change in our scheduled reviews of a particular coverage of the business, we would
identify and measure variances and make adjustments if necessary. For example, we track medical and auto repair costs and may adjust
statistical averages if trends were emerging.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had $9.9 million and $12.3 million of net loss and LAE reserves, which included $5.2 million and $6.4
million of case reserves and $4.7 million and $5.9 million of IBNR reserves. During 2010, the Company�s case reserves decreased $1.2 million
and IBNR reserves declined $1.1 million. This decrease in reserves was primarily driven by a change in claims strategy, implemented during
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compared to December 31, 2009.

20

Edgar Filing: ASSURANCEAMERICA CORP - Form 10-K

Index to Financial Statements 25



Table of Contents

Index to Financial Statements

GROSS RESERVES BY LINE OF BUSINESS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

The following table presents the gross reserves by line of business as of December 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Personal Auto Liability $ 31,638,391 $ 37,545,120
Personal Auto Physical Damage 1,672,676 4,427,863

Total Gross Reserves-Unpaid Losses and LAE $ 33,311,067 $ 41,972,983

The decrease in gross reserves was $8.7 million primarily due to an acceleration of bodily injury claim settlements in the liability line of
business of $5.9 million and a decline in auto physical damage of $2.8 million, resulting from improved claim handling, lower average
frequency and severity in this line of business.

Determination of Loss and LAE Reserves

During 2010 the Company began to use its external actuaries instead of its internal staff to determine loss and LAE reserves by line of business
by producing multiple estimates of required reserves, using both paid and incurred data, to determine if a change in the loss and LAE reserves is
required. If the initial projections vary significantly, the outside actuarial staff will analyze the data using additional techniques. Each review
develops a point estimate, which allows the Company to establish meaningful reserve levels.

In analyzing the ultimate accident year loss experience, our staff reviews incurred and paid loss development patterns at a detailed, line of
business level on a monthly basis and the actuaries review on a quarterly basis. Changes in patterns are taken into account when selecting loss
development factors. These lines of business consist of minimal liability limits, and the loss development is usually short term because a large
majority of the parties involved in an accident report their claims within a short time period after the occurrence.

Assumptions regarding needed reserve levels made by the actuaries take into consideration influences on available historical data that reduce the
predictability of our projected future loss costs. Internal considerations that are process-related, which generally result from changes in our
claims organization�s activities, include claim closure rates and the number of claims that are closed without payment. External items considered
include the litigation atmosphere, state-by-state changes in medical costs, and the availability of services to resolve claims. These also are better
understood at the state level than at a more generalized national level.

IBNR reserves are established on a quarterly basis and are based on a reserve analysis by the Company�s external actuarial firm. Various standard
actuarial tests are applied to lines of business. Included in the analyses are the following:

� Paid and incurred extrapolation methods utilizing paid and incurred loss development to predict ultimate losses;

� Paid and incurred Bornhuetter-Ferguson method adding expected development to actual paid or incurred experience to project
ultimate losses;

� Frequency and severity method to predict ultimate losses;

� Pure premium method experience to project ultimate losses; and
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� Ultimate Loss and ALAE by coverage method to predict ultimate losses and ALAE.
For each line of business evaluated, each test generates a low, high and medium point estimate based on development factors applied to known
paid and incurred losses. Selections of factors are based on historical loss development patterns with adjustments based on actuarial judgment
where anticipated development patterns vary
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from those seen historically. This estimation of IBNR requires selection of various factors. A single point estimate for the line of business being
evaluated is then selected from the results of various tests, based on a combination of simple averages of the point estimates of the various tests
and selections based on actuarial judgment.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, the Company used average paid losses to establish estimated case reserves. The Company
believes that the average paid losses are more indicative of the reserve estimates than average case reserve estimates, which were used in the
past. The average paid losses better reflect the aforementioned underlying factors used to estimate reserves, thereby improving the accuracy of
the reserving.

While the ultimate liability may be greater or lower than recorded loss reserves, the development period for personal auto coverage is shorter
than that associated with many other property and casualty coverages and can therefore be established with more certainty than coverages
developing over longer periods such as environmental coverage.

Our best estimates of the appropriate amounts for our reserves as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are included in our financial statements for
those years. Our goal is to establish the total reserves and determine the adequacy of reserves to cover all loss costs, while sustaining minimal
variation from the time reserves are initially established until losses are fully developed. At the point in time when the reserves are established,
we have no way of knowing whether our reserve estimates will prove to be high or low and, thus, whether future reserve development will be
favorable or unfavorable.

Adjustment to Unpaid Losses and LAE

On a quarterly basis, the Company�s external actuary performs an in-depth independent review of our actuarial data and determines whether or
not the established reserves for both IBNR and LAE are within an acceptable range. At the end of each year, our third-party actuary opines on
and certifies our reserves. For all years presented, our independent actuary has determined that our reserves are within acceptable ranges, and
therefore management has not adjusted the liability for unpaid losses and LAE from the amount determined by its external actuaries.

Key Assumptions

AssuranceAmerica estimates liabilities for the costs of losses and LAE for both reported and unreported IBNR claims based on the historical
trends and assumptions set forth above. When possible, where deviations from historical trends in these key areas exist, quantitative and
qualitative modifications to, or selections of, such factors are made to reflect such deviations. Management analyzes the adequacy of reserves
using actuarial data and analytical reserve development techniques, including projections of ultimate paid losses, to determine the ultimate
amount of reserves. The key assumptions and factors discussed under �Critical Accounting Policy Section� previously are taken into account in
developing these estimates. AssuranceAmerica reviews loss reserve adequacy quarterly by accident year at a line of business level. Reserves are
adjusted as additional information becomes known. Such adjustments are reflected in current year operations. Loss and LAE reserves are also
certified to state regulators annually.

During each quarterly review by the external actuarial staff, factor selections are updated using the additional information obtained with the
passage of time. The ultimate loss estimates and held IBNR reserves for the line of business and accident periods effected are adjusted through
this updating process. Additionally, the external actuaries and internal staff evaluate the overall reasonableness of the loss and LAE ratios by
accident year and by line of business.

Factors that can affect actual frequency include, among others, changes in weather, driving patterns or trends and class of driver. Estimates of
average frequency can be affected by changes in claims settlement and
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reserving practices. Loss severity can be affected by auto repair and medical cost inflation, jury awards and changes in policy limit profiles.
Estimation of LAE reserves is subject to variation from factors such as the use of outside adjusters, frequency of lawsuits, claims staffing and
experience levels. Key assumptions as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 were premised on historical loss reserve development patterns.

Variability of Reserves for Loss and LAE

Management believes that there are no reasonably likely changes in the key factors and assumptions that materially affect the Company�s
estimate of the reserve for loss and LAE that would materially impact the Company�s financial position, liquidity and results of operations. The
Company�s low average policy limit and concentration on the nonstandard auto driver classification help stabilize fluctuations in frequency and
severity, thereby limiting the potential variability the reserve level may have on reported results. For example, approximately 96% of policies
included within the nonstandard book of business include only the state-mandated minimum policy limits for bodily injury and property damage,
which mitigates the complexity of estimating average severity. These low limits tend to reduce the exposure of the loss reserves on this coverage
to medical cost inflation on severe injuries since the minimum policy limits will limit the total payout.

The following table provides the estimated changes in the liability and related payments made for the calendar years ended December 31, 2010
and 2009:

2010 2009
Change in net loss and LAE reserves $ (2,362,503) $ (570,678) 
Paid losses and LAE 27,384,652 25,819,127

Total incurred losses and LAE $ 25,022,149 $ 25,248,449

Loss and LAE ratio(1) 75.0% 73.3% 

(1) The ratio was calculated by taking losses and LAE divided by the Net Premiums Earned.
Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses (LAE)

The Company�s claims costs represents payments made and estimated future payments to be made to or on behalf of our policyholders, including
expenses needed to adjust or settle claims. These costs relate to current costs under our non-standard state-mandated automobile insurance
programs. Claims costs are impacted by loss severity and frequency and are influenced by inflation and driving patterns, among other factors.
Accordingly, anticipated changes in these factors are taken into account when we establish premium rates and loss reserves. During the year
ended December 31, 2010, our loss and LAE ratio increased 1.7%, which reflects 6.5% unfavorable loss development for prior years due to an
increase in incurred severity in the bodily injury line as well as increased PIP losses due to fraud in Florida, offset by improvement in accident
year 2010 losses in both incurred severity (average cost per claim) and frequency. The increase in bodily injury is primarily due to higher
medical costs and the Company has increased rates and reduced writings in Florida in order to minimize its losses in this state and improve profit
margins. We continuously monitor internal and industry-wide severity trends and adjust rates as appropriate to compensate for the higher loss
costs.

Ceded Reinsurance

AssuranceAmerica cedes a significant portion of its personal automobile premium to other reinsurers. The Company�s reinsurance strategy is to
use quota share reinsurance to mitigate the financial impact of losses on its operations, while enabling premium growth within its capital base.
Historically, the Company�s reinsurance contracts have been one or two years in duration, subject to renewal.
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Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders. The Company periodically reviews the financial
condition of its reinsurers to minimize its exposure to losses from reinsurer insolvencies. The Company has seven reinsurers, of which six are A-
rated or better based on the most recent A.M. Best ratings available, while the seventh reinsurer does not have a rating but the contract is in
run-off. Further, the reinsurers cover up to $2,000,000 in aggregate claims for extra contractual obligations each policy year.

The impact of reinsurance on the income statement as of December 31 is as follows:

2010 2009
Premiums ceded written: $ 67,795,311 $ 71,998,755
Ceded commissions incurred: $ 15,355,480 $ 16,746,054
Ceded losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred: $ 61,574,293 $ 62,788,154

The impact of reinsurance on the balance sheets as of December 31 is as follows:

2010 2009
Reinsurance recoverable: $ 34,013,415 $ 43,809,125
Ceded unpaid losses and loss adjustment expense: $ 23,410,446 $ 29,709,859
Ceded unearned premiums: $ 23,643,822 $ 25,098,051
Reinsurance payable: $ 29,426,944 $ 28,523,284

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the reinsured policies. The
Company reports as assets (a) the estimated reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses, including an estimate for losses incurred but not reported,
and (b) amounts paid to reinsurers applicable to the policies-in-force.

During 2010 and 2009, the Company ceded approximately 70% of its premium and losses to the contracted reinsurers. Premium ceded under
this reinsurance agreement for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were $67.8 million and $72.0 million, respectively. The
related ceding commission was approximately $15.4 million in 2010 and $16.7 million in 2009. The lower ceded premium is mainly due to a
decrease in volume within the states of Florida, Georgia and Louisiana.

Ceded reinsurance for all programs reduced AssuranceAmerica�s incurred losses and LAE by $61.6 million and $62.8 million for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Reinsurance assets include balances due from other contracted reinsurers under the terms of reinsurance agreements. Amounts applicable to
ceded unearned premiums ceded loss payments and ceded claims liabilities are reported as assets in the accompanying balance sheets. Under the
reinsurance agreements, the Company has four reinsurers that are required to collateralize the reinsurance recoverables. As of December 31,
2010, all reinsurers have provided a letter of credit or a secured trust account to provide security sufficient to satisfy AssuranceAmerica�s
obligations under the reinsurance agreement. The Company believes the fair value of its reinsurance recoverables approximates their carrying
amounts.

The Company�s reinsurance recoverable balances amounted to $34.0 million and $43.8 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The recoverable includes ceded unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses of $23.4 million and $29.7 million of the same periods, respectively.
The ceded reserves from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the reinsured policies ceded.
Reinsurance recoverable assets include paid loss balances due from other reinsurers under the terms of reinsurance agreements in the amount of
$10.6 million and $14.1 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The paid loss recoverables are in good standing as of
December 31, 2010.
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AssuranceAmerica�s ceded unearned premium relates to policies in force and is earned ratably over the policy period. As of December 31, 2010
and 2009, the ceded unearned reserves amounted to $23.6 million and $25.1 million, respectively. Reinsurance payable of $29.4 million and
$28.5 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 represents the amounts due to reinsurers for ceded premiums net of commissions. The
Company pays its reinsurers on a collected premium basis, and no balances are in dispute through December 31, 2010.

AssuranceAmerica�s quota share reinsurance facility has a significant impact on its cash flows. Since the Company cedes approximately 70% of
its premium and losses, the Company relies heavily on its reinsurers to settle outstanding reinsurance balances due for loss payments net of
premiums collected. AssuranceAmerica paid ceded premiums net of commissions of $51.5 million and $53.2 million and received reinsurance
recoverables on paid loss and loss adjustment expenses of $71.3 million and $58.1 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company�s reinsurance strategies have not changed from previous years and the Company�s limited loss exposure is approximately 30%,
which is based on the existing quota share agreement, whereby the Company cedes approximately 70% of its losses. While the Company
monitors conditions within the reinsurance market, adverse conditions could have an impact on the Company�s ability to secure reinsurance
capacity, thereby limiting its ability to cede future losses.

Valuation of Long Lived Assets and Goodwill

We assess the carrying amount of identifiable intangible assets, long-lived assets if events or changes in circumstances indicate that such
carrying amount may not be recoverable. We assess the carrying amount of our goodwill at least annually. Factors we consider important, which
could trigger an impairment review, include the following:

� significant underperformance relative to historical and projected future results;

� significant changes in the manner of our use of these assets or the strategy for our overall business; and

� Significantly negative industry or economic trends.
When we determine that the carrying amount of intangible assets or goodwill may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more of
the above indicators of impairment, we measure the impairment based on the pro forma sustainable earnings capacity and discounted cash flows.
This review is based upon our historical earnings and underlying risk inherent in the agencies current business model and industry comparisons.

While we believe that our assumptions are appropriate, such amounts estimated could differ materially from what will actually occur in the
future. In assessing goodwill, these estimates are prepared at the generating segment level. Goodwill is allocated to the TrustWay segments for
the purpose of impairment testing.

The TrustWay division recorded an impairment loss of $1.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2010 to reduce the carrying amount. The impairment
loss is presented as impairment of goodwill in the consolidated income statement. We have performed our annual goodwill impairment testing
during the fourth quarter of 2010.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
All information required to be disclosed in Item 8 is incorporated by reference from the consolidated financial statements and schedules thereto
in Item 15 of this Annual Report.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None
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Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Company�s management, including its principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and are effective to ensure
that such information is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission�s rules and forms. As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company�s Chief Executive Officer
and its Chief Financial Officer carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company�s disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the �Exchange Act�)). Based
upon that evaluation, the Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company�s disclosure controls
and procedures were effective December 31, 2010.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company�s internal controls over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2010 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company�s internal controls over financial reporting.

Management�s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria described in �Internal Control � Integrated Framework� issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate. Based on this evaluation under the Internal
Control � Integrated Framework, management determined that, as of December 31, 2010, we maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting.

This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of the Company�s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management�s report was not subject to attestation by the Company�s registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of
the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management�s report in this Annual report.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
There is no other information required to be disclosed in a report on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of 2010 that was not so disclosed.
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PART III

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
All information regarding executive officers, all information required to be disclosed in Item 10 with respect to our directors is incorporated by
reference from the section entitled �Nominees for Board of Directors� in the Company�s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on April 28, 2011 (�Proxy Statement�).

All information required to be disclosed in Item 10 with respect to our directors is incorporated by reference from the section entitled
�Biographies of Directors� in the Company�s Proxy Statement.

All information required to be disclosed in Item 10 with respect to our directors is incorporated by reference from the section entitled �Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance� in the Company�s Proxy Statement.

All information required to be disclosed in Item 10 with respect to corporate governance is incorporated by reference from the section entitled
�Meetings and Committees of the Board� in the Company�s Proxy Statement.

Code of Conduct

We have adopted a code of conduct that applies to all of our directors, officers and employees. This code is publicly available in the investor
relations area of our website at www.assuranceamerica.com and provided as an exhibit to this Annual Report. Copies of our code of conduct
may also be requested in print without charge by writing to Investor Relations at AssuranceAmerican Corporation, 5500 Interstate North
Parkway, Suite 600, Atlanta, Georgia 30328.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth the name, age and position of each of our executive officers.

Name Age Positions Held
David Anthony 51 Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer,

AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC
Charlie Brock 56 Senior Vice President � Business Development, AssuranceAmerica

Managing General Agency, LLC
Mark H. Hain 61 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Guy W. Millner 75 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Sheree Williams 55 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Stacey Warren 43 Senior Vice President � Sales, AssuranceAmerica Managing

General Agency, LLC
Gregory D. Woods 49 Controller
Al Yeager 49 Senior Vice President Claims and Product, AssuranceAmerica

Managing General Agency, LLC
Biographies of Executive Officers

David H. Anthony has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer since August 2010 and Vice President of Information
Technology from March 2004 to August 2010 of AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC., a subsidiary of the Company, since
March 2004. Mr. Anthony has over 21 years of experience in the Information Technology industry with the last 12 focused in the area of
consulting. Prior to joining the Company, he served as Vice President of CGI Information Systems and Management Consultants for four years.
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Charlie Brock has served as Senior Vice President of Business Development since November 2010 and Vice President Sales of
AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC since he joined the Company in December 2008. He was Chief Marketing Officer and Vice
president of Sales for Access Insurance Company from April 2008 to December 2008. He was the President and COO of Executrack, Inc., an
executive coaching and training company in Atlanta, GA, from 2003 to April 2008. Prior to 2003, Mr. Brock served in several capacities with
The Coca-Cola Company, Frito-Lay and Proctor and Gamble.

Mark H. Hain has served as Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since February 2009. He served as Senior Vice President
since August 2005 prior to becoming Executive Vice President 2009. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Hain was in the private practice of law
for two years and was General Counsel for Computer Jobs.com, Inc. for two years. He served as Senior Vice President and General Counsel for
Norrell Corporation from 1988 to 1999 and as General Counsel for American First Corporation, C.L. Frates & Co, Inc. and the Oklahoma
Insurance Department prior to 1988.

Guy W. Millner has served as the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer since June 2003. Mr. Millner served as Chairman of AA
Holdings, LLC, the predecessor of AssuranceAmerica Corporation, a Georgia corporation, from 1999 to 2003. From 1961 to 1999, Mr. Millner
served as Chairman of Norrell Corporation, a leading provider of staffing and outsourcing solutions.

Joseph J. Skruck, CPCU, has served as President and Chief Operating Officer since October 2009. Prior to that Mr. Skruck served as President
and Chief Operating Officer of AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC, an insurance subsidiary of the Company since January
2002. He served as Senior Vice-President of Sun States Insurance Group from 1998 through 2001.

Stacy Warren has served as Senior Vice President of Sales and Customer Service of AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC, an
insurance subsidiary of the Company since November 2010. Ms. Warren was Assistant Vice President of Sales and Marketing for Chartis
Insurance from 2009 through November 2010; she was Vice President of Operations for 21st Century Insurance and Financial Services
(previously AIG Agency Auto), from 2002 through November 2009. Ms. Warren has over 15 years of executive experience in the insurance
industry, specializing in sales, marketing and customer service.

Sheree S. Williams has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of AssuranceAmerica Corporation since September 2010.
Ms. Williams was Vice President of Finance for 21st Century Insurance and Financial Services (previously AIG Agency Auto), from 2006
through September 2010; she was Corporate Controller for 21st Century Insurance and Financial Services from 2004 to 2006. Prior to working
with 21st Century Insurance and Financial Services, Ms. Williams served as Senior Vice President of Finance and Senior Vice President of
Logistics for Swift Denim as well as Corporate Controller for Tom�s Foods, Inc.

Gregory D. Woods, joined the Company in 2005 and serves as Controller. Prior to joining the Company, he spent three years with Assurant
Group, an insurance products provider in various financial management roles within the company. Mr. Woods also served as the Controller with
Aon Specialty Corporation for three years from 1999 to 2002. Prior to 1999, Mr. Woods served in several financial capacities with Orion Capital
Companies and Aon Re. He has an insurance accounting career that spans over 20 years.

Al Yeager is Senior Vice President of Product and Claims of Assurance America Managing General Agency, LLC., a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Yeager has 22 years of claims, product, sales and general management experience with leading companies in the insurance
industry. Prior to joining the Company in October 2008, Al served as Regional Vice President of Product Management and as a Vice President
of Claims for AIG personal lines from 2004 to 2008. Prior to AIG, he spent 17 years with Progressive Insurance in a variety of capacities across
the country. Mr. Yeager holds a B.S. degree in Biochemistry.

The officers serve at the pleasure of the board until their successors are elected and qualified.
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Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
All information required to be disclosed in Item 11 with respect to executive compensation and directors� compensation is incorporated by
reference from the sections entitled �Executive Compensation� and �Director Compensation� in the Company�s Proxy Statement.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except for information regarding the Company�s equity compensation plans set forth below, all information required to be disclosed in Item 12 is
incorporated by reference from the section entitled �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management� in the Company�s Proxy
Statement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2010, with respect to the Company�s compensation plans under which equity
securities are authorized for issuance and adopted by the shareholders:

Plan Category

(a)
Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon

Exercise of
Outstanding
Options

(b)
Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

of
Outstanding Options

(c)
Number of Securities

Remaining
Available

for Future Issuance
Under Equity

Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities

Reflected in Column (a))
Equity Employees�2010 Incentive
Plan(1) 862,000 $ 0.24 1,138,000
Equity Employees�2000 Incentive
Plan(2) 6,736,555 $ 0.52 �
Total 7,598,555 $ 0.49 1,138,000

(1) The number of shares available for future issuance is the total number of awards less the cumulative number of awards granted under the
plan plus the number of awards cancelled under the plan.

(2) This plan has expired and no further awards may be made thereunder.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
All information required to be disclosed in Item 13 with respect to related person transactions is incorporated by reference from the section
entitled �Certain Relationships and Related Transactions� in the Company�s Proxy Statement.

All information required to be disclosed in Item 13 with respect to Director independence is incorporated by reference from the section entitled
�Proposal 1 � Election of Directors� in the Company�s Proxy Statement.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.
All information required to be disclosed in Item 14 is incorporated by reference from the section entitled �Principal Accountant � Audit and
Non-Audit Fees� in the Company�s Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements

The following financial statements of the Company, together with the Report of the Company�s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
dated March 28, 2011, are filed herewith:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders� Equity for the years ended December  31, 2010 and 2009 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-8
(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules are omitted, as the required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the respective
financial statements or related notes.

(3) Exhibit of Index

  2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization dated April 1, 2003, by and among the Company, AA Holdings Acquisition Sub,
Inc., AA Holdings, LLC and AssuranceAmerica Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 16, 2003).

  2.2 Asset Purchase Agreement by and between TrustWay Insurance Agencies, LLC, AssuranceAmerica Corporation, Thomas-Cook
Holding Company and James C. Cook (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
August 3, 2004).

  3.1 Amended And Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company�s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

  3.2 Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the
Company�s Definitive Proxy Statement filed on September 9, 2003).

  3.3 By-Laws of the Company (incorporated by reference to the Company�s Form 10 filed on May 30, 1972).

  3.4 Amendment to the Company�s By-Laws adopted February 14, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3ii to the Company�s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended December 31, 2000).

  3.5 Amendment to the Company�s By-Laws adopted June 26, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Company�s Annual
Report on Form 10-KSB/A for the year ended March 31, 2003).
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  3.6 Amendment to the Company�s By-Laws adopted June 15, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to the Company�s Annual
Report on Form 10-KSB/A for the year ended December 31, 2004).

  4.1 Certificate of Designations Establishing the Powers, Preferences, limitations, Restrictions and Relative Rights of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock of AssuranceAmerica Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company�s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended June 30, 2004).

  4.2 Amendment to Certificate of Designations Establishing the Powers, Preferences, Limitations, Restrictions and Relative Rights of
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of AssuranceAmerica Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2005).

  4.3 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated December 22, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company�s
Form 8-K filed on December 27, 2005).

  4.4 Junior Subordinated Indenture dated December 22, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company�s Form 8-K
filed on December 27, 2005).

10.1* Brainworks Ventures, Inc. Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Company�s Definitive Proxy
Statement filed on October 20, 2000).

10.2* Amendment to the Brainworks Ventures, Inc. Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix 3 to the Company�s
Definitive Proxy Statement filed on April 11, 2006).

10.3* Promissory Note assumed by the Company to Guy W. Millner dated February 10, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Company�s Form 10-KSB/A for the year ending December 31, 2004).

10.4 Promissory Note assumed by the Company to Lawrence Stumbaugh dated January 3, 2003 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company�s Form 10-KSB/A for the year ending December 31, 2004).

10.5* Promissory Note assumed by the Company to Guy W. Millner dated August 31, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4
to the Company�s Form 10-KSB/A for the year ending December 31, 2004).

10.6* Employment Agreement between Agencies and James C. Cook dated July 31, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 3, 2003).

10.7* Executive Employment Agreement between AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC and Joseph J. Skruck
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s current report on Form 8-K dated March 8, 2006).

10.8 Stock Purchase Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2005).

10.9 Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Form 8-K filed on May 10,
2005).

10.10* Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2005).

10.11* Description of Executive Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Form 10-QSB for the quarter
ended June 30, 2005).

10.12 Guarantee Agreement dated December 22, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s Form 8-K filed on
December 27, 2005).
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10.13* Executive Employment Agreement between Sercap Holdings, LLC and Lawrence Stumbaugh effective July 10, 2002 and
assumed by the Company effective April 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company�s Form 10KSB for
the year ending December 31, 2005).

10.14 Loan Agreement, dated July 17, 2009, by and between AssuranceAmerica Corporation and Wachovia Bank, National Association
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 2009).

10.15 Revolving Loan Note, dated July 17, 2009, by and between AssuranceAmerica Corporation and Wachovia Bank, National
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 2009).

10.16 Pledge Agreement, dated July 17, 2009, by and between AssuranceAmerica Corporation and Wachovia Bank, National
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company�s 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 2009).

10.17 Guaranty of Payment Agreement, dated July 17, 2009, by and between by AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC
and Wachovia Bank, National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company�s 10-Q for quarter ended
June 30, 2009).

10.18 Guaranty of Payment Agreement, dated July 17, 2009, by and between Trustway T.E.A.M., Inc. and Wachovia Bank, National
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company�s 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 2009).

10.19 Guaranty of Payment Agreement, dated July 17, 2009, by and between Trustway Insurance Agencies, LLC and Wachovia Bank,
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company�s 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 2009).

10.20 Pledge Agreement, dated July 17, 2009, by and between Trustway Insurance Agencies, LLC and Wachovia Bank, National
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company�s 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 2009).

10.21* Executive Employment Agreement between AssuranceAmerica Corporation and Mark H. Hain effective November 20, 2007, as
amended by that certain Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated November 20, 2007, by and between AssuranceAmerica
Corporation and Mark H. Hain. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s current report on Form 10-K dated
March 26, 2010).

10.22 AssuranceAmerica Corporation 2010 Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix 1 to the Company�s Definitive Proxy
Statement filed on March 29, 2011).

10.23 Quota share reinsurance agreement between AssuranceAmerica Insurance Company and Swiss Reinsurance America Corporation,
dated as of January 1, 2011.

10.24* Employment Agreement and Addendum to Employment agreement between Guy W. Millner and the Company (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s current report on Form 8-K dated March 29, 2011).

10.25* Amended and Restated Employment Agreement and Addendum to Employment Agreement between Joseph J. Skruck and the
Company (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s current report on Form 8-K dated March 29, 2011).

10.26* Amended and Restated Employment Agreement and Addendum to Employment Agreement between Mark H. Hain and the
Company (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s current report on Form 8-K dated March 29, 2011).

10.27 First Amendment to the Revolving Loan Note, dated June 30, 2010, to the Loan Agreement dated July, 17, 2009, by and between
AssuranceAmerica Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (as successor in interest by merger to Wachovia Bank, N.A.) (the
�Lender�). (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s current Form 8-K dated July 1, 2010).
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10.28 Consent of the accountant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 23.2 of the accountant�s current report on Form S-8 dated May 26,
2010).

14.1 Code of Conduct (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to the Company�s Transition Report on Form 10-KSB for the transition
period from April 1, 2003 to December 31, 2003).

21.1 List of Subsidiaries

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Item 16(a). BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE
All information required to be disclosed in Item 16 is incorporated by reference from the section entitled �Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance� in the Company�s Proxy Statement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

By: /s/    GUY W. MILLNER        

Guy W. Millner,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 28, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/    Guy W. Millner        

Guy W. Millner

Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 28, 2011

/s/    Sheree S. Williams        

Sheree S. Williams

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: March 28, 2011

/s/    Donald Ratajczak        

Donald Ratajczak

Director Date: March 28, 2011

/s/    Quill O. Healey        

Quill O. Healey

Director Date: March 28, 2011

/s/    Kaaren J. Street        

Kaaren J. Street

Director Date: March 28, 2011

/s/    Sam Zamarripa        

Sam Zamarripa

Director Date: March 28, 2011

/s/    William R. Reed        

William R. Reed

Director Date: March 28, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

AssuranceAmerica Corporation

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of AssuranceAmerica Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders� equity, comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
AssuranceAmerica Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Porter Keadle Moore, LLP

Atlanta, Georgia

March 28, 2011
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ASSURANCEAMERICA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,379,014 $ 6,253,643
Cash restricted 1,802,990 1,800,000
Short-term investments 145,085 365,717
Long-term investments, at fair value (amortized cost $8,561,245 and $7,745,142) 8,630,776 7,518,144
Long-term investments, held to maturity at amortized cost (fair value $0 and $4,981,850) 0 1,015,374
Marketable equity securities, at fair value (cost $1,978,166 and $1,888,334) 2,243,235 1,918,841
Other long-term investments 727,288 0
Other securities 0 155,000
Investment income due and accrued 180,487 180,719
Receivable from insureds 33,120,082 35,173,717
Reinsurance recoverable (including $10,602,969 and $14,099,266 on paid losses) 34,013,415 43,809,125
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 23,643,822 25,098,051
Deferred acquisition costs 2,286,118 2,457,647
Property and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation of $5,135,550 and $4,344,673) 2,152,632 2,012,963
Other receivables 1,776,332 1,766,762
Prepaid expenses 660,028 510,558
Intangibles (net of accumulated amortization of $3,428,671 and $3,051,877) 5,969,215 7,509,934
Security deposits 109,543 105,315
Prepaid income tax 106,864 249,452
Deferred tax assets 1,837,551 2,909,229
Other assets 0 335,526

Total assets $ 127,784,477 $ 141,145,717

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 8,797,715 $ 8,551,370
Unearned premium 34,217,108 35,916,156
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses 33,311,067 41,972,983
Reinsurance payable 29,426,944 28,523,284
Provisional commission reserve 3,289,272 3,599,289
Funds withheld from reinsurers 1,875,000 1,875,000
Revolving line of credit 1,500,000 1,500,000
Notes payable and related party debt 175,420 774,001
Junior subordinated debentures payable 0 4,981,850

Total liabilities 112,592,526 127,693,933

Commitments and Contingencies
Common stock, $.01 par value (authorized 120,000,000 and 80,000,000 outstanding 65,494,357 and
65,144,357) 654,943 651,443
Surplus-paid in 17,875,779 17,363,620
Accumulated deficit (3,547,896) (4,440,473) 
Accumulated other comprehensive gains (losses):
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities, net of taxes 209,125 (122,806) 
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Total stockholders� equity 15,191,951 13,451,784

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 127,784,477 $ 141,145,717

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ASSURANCEAMERICA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31,
2010 2009

Revenue:
Gross premiums written $ 100,921,776 $ 107,249,107
Ceded premiums written (67,795,311) (71,998,755) 

Net premiums written 33,126,465 35,250,352
Change in unearned premiums, net of prepaid reinsurance premiums 244,818 (826,540) 

Net premiums earned 33,371,283 34,423,812
Commission income 20,932,217 21,641,251
Managing general agent fees 11,004,248 10,277,414
Gain on extinguishment of debt 3,509,845 0
Net investment income 647,184 670,244
Net investment gains (losses) on securities 18,319 (362,030) 
Other fee income 428,662 341,549

Total revenue 69,911,758 66,992,240

Expenses:
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 25,022,149 25,248,449
Selling, general, and administrative 39,503,809 38,871,540
Stock option expense 410,658 333,890
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,167,671 1,183,299
Goodwill impairment 1,519,200 0
Interest expense 354,395 458,500

Total operating expenses 67,977,882 66,095,678

Income before income taxes 1,933,876 896,562
Income tax provision expense 1,041,299 448,815

Net income $ 892,577 $ 447,747

Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 0.014 $ 0.007
Diluted $ 0.014 $ 0.007
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 65,467,508 65,120,526
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 65,917,793 65,284,661

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ASSURANCEAMERICA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Common
Shares

Common
Stock

Paid in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss),
Net of Taxes Total

Balance, December 31, 2008 64,953,881 $ 649,538 $ 16,911,635 $ (4,888,220) $ (689,162) $ 11,983,791
Stock issued 190,476 1,905 118,095 0 0 120,000
Stock option expense 0 0 333,890 0 0 333,890
Change in value of available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes 0 0 0 0 566,356 566,356
Net income 0 0 0 447,747 0 447,747

Balance, December 31, 2009 65,144,357 651,443 17,363,620 (4,440,473) (122,806) 13,451,784
Stock issued 350,000 3,500 101,501 0 0 105,001
Stock option expense 0 0 410,658 0 0 410,658
Change in value of available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes 0 0 0 0 331,931 331,931
Net income 0 0 0 892,577 0 892,577

Balance, December 31, 2010 65,494,357 $ 654,943 $ 17,875,779 $ (3,547,896) $ 209,125 $ 15,191,951

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ASSURANCEAMERICA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2010 2009
Net income $ 892,577 $ 447,747

Other comprehensive income:
Change in unrealized (losses) gains of investments:
Unrealized gains arising during the year 549,408 544,139
Reclassification adjustment for realized gains (losses) recognized during the year (18,319) 362,030

Net change in unrealized gains 531,089 906,169
Deferred income tax expense effect on above changes (199,158) (339,813) 

Other comprehensive income 331,931 566,356

Comprehensive income $ 1,224,508 $ 1,014,103

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ASSURANCEAMERICA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 892,577 $ 447,747
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Net investment losses (gains) (18,319) 362,030
Goodwill impairment 1,519,200 0
Depreciation and amortization 1,295,039 1,209,171
Stock-based compensation 410,658 333,890
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 0 23,680
Gain on extinguishment of debt (3,509,845) 0
Deferred tax provision 872,519 450,951
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Investment income due and accrued 232 (84,533) 
Receivables 2,044,065 (4,122,446) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (140,752) 110,994
Unearned premiums (1,699,048) 3,008,442
Unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses (8,661,916) (607,716) 
Reinsurance payable 903,660 2,106,794
Reinsurance recoverable 9,795,710 (4,821,994) 
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 1,454,229 (2,181,901) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (15,655) 1,054,372
Funds withheld from reinsurers 0 1,800,000
Prepaid income taxes 142,588 (11,009) 
Deferred acquisition costs 171,529 (136,130) 
Provisional commission reserve (310,017) 238,244

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 5,146,454 (819,414) 

Cash flows from investing activities, net of effect of agency acquisitions:
Purchases of property and equipment, net (898,820) (303,440) 
Changes in short-term investments 220,632 286,763
Proceeds from sales, maturities and calls of investments 1,867,815 8,078,810
Purchases of investments (2,839,140) (8,030,718) 
Transfer of funds to restricted cash (2,990) (1,800,000) 
Purchases of other-long term investments (750,000) 0
Sale of book of business 0 30,000
Cash paid for acquisition of agencies, net of cash acquired (125,000) (34,200) 

Net cash used by investing activities, net of effect of agency acquisitions (2,527,503) (1,772,785) 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of notes payable (598,581) (1,061,307) 
Borrowings on line of credit 0 1,500,000
Stock issued, net of expenses 105,001 120,000

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (493,580) 558,693
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Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,125,371 (2,033,506) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 6,253,643 8,287,149

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 8,379,014 $ 6,253,643

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ASSURANCEAMERICA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2010 and 2009

(1) Description of Business
AssuranceAmerica Corporation, a Nevada corporation (the �Company�), is an insurance holding company whose business is comprised of
AssuranceAmerica Insurance Company (�AAIC�), AssuranceAmerica Managing General Agency, LLC (�MGA�) and TrustWay Insurance
Agencies, LLC (�TrustWay�), each wholly owned. The Company solicits and underwrites nonstandard personal passenger automobile insurance.
The Company is headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consolidation and Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts and operations of AAIC, MGA and TrustWay. All material
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�).

Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported financial statement balances as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
Actual results could differ materially from those estimates used.

The Company�s liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses (an estimate of the ultimate cost to settle claims both reported and
unreported), while supported by actuarial projections and other data, is ultimately based on management�s reasoned expectations of future events.
Although considerable variability is inherent in these estimates, management believes that this liability is adequate. Estimates are reviewed
regularly and adjusted as necessary. Such adjustments are reflected in current operations.

Goodwill represents the amount by which the cost of acquired net assets exceeds related fair value. Other intangible assets include the costs of
specifically identifiable intangible assets, primarily customer renewal lists. In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�)
and Intangibles, Goodwill and Other, (Topic 350), the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets is reviewed annually or whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount might not be recoverable. The Company uses an independent valuation
firm to assist in its assessment of a possible impairment of intangible assets. If the fair value of the operations to which goodwill relates is less
than the carrying amount of those operations, including unamortized goodwill, the carrying amount of goodwill is reduced accordingly with a
charge to expense. The Company recognized a goodwill impairment loss of $1.5 million in 2010 related to its TrustWay retail operations.
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ASSURANCEAMERICA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � (Continued)

New Accounting Standards Adopted

Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements

In March 2010, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�) 2010-11, Derivatives and Hedging, (Topic 815), which provides accounting
guidance that clarifies the scope exception for embedded credit derivative features related to the transfer of credit risk in the form of
subordination of one financial instrument to another. The guidance addresses how to determine which embedded credit derivative features,
including those in collateralized debt obligations and synthetic collateralized debt obligations are considered to be embedded derivatives that
should not be analyzed for potential bifurcation and separate accounting under the existing accounting guidance for embedded derivatives. The
guidance is effective for fiscal quarters beginning after June 15, 2010. The Company adopted the provisions of the standard as of June 30, 2010.
Since the Company has no such derivatives, this guidance did not have any effect on the results of operations or financial position.

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820), new accounting guidance which
expands disclosure requirements relating to fair value measurements. The guidance adds requirements for disclosing amounts of and reasons for
significant transfers into and out of Levels 1 and 2 and requires gross rather than net disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and
settlements relating to Level 3 measurements. The guidance also provides clarification that fair value measurement disclosures are required for
each class of assets and liabilities. Disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for measurements that fall in
either Level 2 or Level 3 are also required. The Company adopted the provisions of the new guidance as of March 31, 2010.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17, Consolidations (Topic 810), which requires an entity to perform a qualitative analysis to
determine whether it holds a controlling financial interest (i.e., is a primary beneficiary) in a variable interest entity (�VIE�). The analysis
identifies the primary beneficiary of a VIE as the entity that has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact
the economic performance of the VIE and the obligation to absorb losses, or the right to receive benefits, that could potentially be significant to
the VIE. The Company adopted the new guidance as of January 1, 2010. The adoption had no impact on the Company�s results of operations or
financial position.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash demand deposits, money market accounts and bank certificates of deposit with a maturity of less than
twelve months.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company�s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and
accrued liabilities, approximate fair value because of their short maturities. The carrying amounts of equity securities and long-term bonds
purchased are adjusted to reflect the current market value, except for the redeemable preferred stock, which is carried at amortized cost. Our
other long-term investment consists of low income federal housing credits, which are being amortized over the life of the credits using the
amortized cost method. The credits will be utilized over 10 years as required by the federal government and will be offset against the Company�s
federal income tax expenses.
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The carrying value of the junior subordinated debentures approximates the fair value because the interest rate adjusts quarterly. The carrying
value of the line of credit and notes payable are both carried at fair value. Changes in market values on unrealized gains and losses are reflected
in the shareholder equity section on the balance sheet.

Deferred Acquisition Costs

Deferred acquisition costs (�DAC�) include premium taxes and commissions incurred in connection with the production of new and renewal
business, less commissions ceded to reinsurers. These costs are deferred and amortized over the period in which the related premiums are
earned. The Company does not consider anticipated investment income in determining the recoverability of these costs. Based on current
indications, management believes that these costs will be fully recoverable and, accordingly, no reduction in DAC has been recognized.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives used for depreciation purposes are
as follows: Furniture and fixtures � 5 to 7 years; equipment � 3 to 5 years; software currently in service � 3 to 5 years; autos � 3 to 5 years; signs � 2 to
5 years, leasehold improvements � over the remaining life of the lease, including options. Improvements, additions and major renewals which
extend the life of an asset are capitalized. Repairs are expensed in the year incurred. Depreciation expense was $790,877 and $797,149 for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

A summary of property and equipment is as follows:

December 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

Furniture and equipment $ 1,277,684 $ 1,254,970
Automobile 113,661 95,840
Signs 269,296 227,908
Computer equipment 2,067,117 1,842,661
Computer software 2,341,517 1,766,481
Leasehold improvements 1,218,907 1,169,776
Less: accumulated depreciation (5,135,550) (4,344,673) 

$ 2,152,632 $ 2,012,963

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of non-competition agreements, renewal lists, restrictive covenants and goodwill. Intangible assets are stated at cost.
Goodwill and certain intangibles with indefinite lives are not amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at least annually. During the fourth
quarter of 2010, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $1,519,200 based an independent review in assessing the intangible
asset. The non-compete agreements and restrictive covenants are amortized on a straight-line basis varying from 2 years to 5 years and the
renewal lists are being amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 years. Amortization expense was $376,794 and $386,150 for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Intangible assets include the following:

December 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

Goodwill $ 4,622,526 $ 6,086,726
Non-compete clause 809,500 809,500
Renewal list 3,745,860 3,445,585
Restrictive covenants 220,000 220,000

9,397,886 10,561,811
Less accumulated amortization (3,428,671) (3,051,877) 

$ 5,969,215 $ 7,509,934

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the succeeding five fiscal years is:

2011 $ 385,026
2012 $ 383,809
2013 $ 350,868
2014 $ 301,599
2015 $ 229,714

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company is named as a defendant in lawsuits related to claims and other insurance policy issues. Some of
the actions seek extra-contractual and/or punitive damages. These actions are vigorously defended unless a reasonable settlement appears
appropriate. These losses are provided for under Unpaid Losses and loss adjustment expenses (�LAE�). In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of known litigation is not expected to be material to the Company�s financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

Revenue Recognition

Insurance premiums are recognized pro rata over the terms of the policies. The unearned portion of premiums is included in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as a liability for unearned premium. Commission income is recognized in the period the insurance policy is written and is
reduced by an estimate of future cancellations. Installment and other fees are recognized in the periods the services are rendered.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $479,521 and $658,452
respectively.

Stock Options
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expense in their financial statements the estimated fair value of awarded stock options after the grant date. The Company adopted this
accounting method using the modified
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prospective application. For options granted and vested prior to the effective date, the Company continues to follow the intrinsic value method
set forth in Accounting Principles Board (�APB�) Opinion No. 25 �Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees� (�APB No. 25�) and discloses the pro
forma effects on net income as if the fair value of these options had been expensed. The disclosure provisions required by ASC 718 are provided
in Note 9.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for temporary differences
between the financial reporting bases and the tax bases of assets and liabilities, at the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when the
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The principal assets and liabilities that generate these temporary differences are
unearned premiums, loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, deferred policy acquisition costs, gain on extinguishment of debt, operating loss
and tax-credit carry forwards, realized capital losses and non-deductible provisions for unearned revenue, goodwill and unrealized capital gains
and losses. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in net income in the period that includes the
enactment date.

The Company has entered into a tax sharing agreement with AAIC on a statutory basis. The operating results for AAIC are included in the
consolidated income tax return filed by the Company. The income tax provision is computed separately for AAIC and the Company. TrustWay
and MGA are not tax paying entities for federal income tax purposes and their results are consolidated with the Company�s tax return. AAIC pays
only federal income tax. The total AAIC tax expense was $0.1 million and $0.8 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

(3) Investments
All of the Company�s marketable equity and long-term investment securities have been classified as available-for-sale, except for the redeemable
trust preferred, which is carried at amortized cost. The Company�s long-term securities are available to be sold in response to the Company�s
liquidity needs, changes in market interest rates, asset-liability management strategies, and other economic factors. Investments
available-for-sale are stated at fair value on the balance sheet. The other long-term investments consist of low income federal housing credits,
which are being amortized over the life of the credits using the amortized cost method. Unrealized gains and losses are excluded from earnings
and are reported as a component of other comprehensive income within stockholders� equity net of related deferred income taxes.

A decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale security below cost that is deemed other than temporary results in a charge to income,
resulting in the establishment of a new cost basis for the security. Net unrealized gains (losses) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010
and 2009 were $334,600 and $(196,491), respectively.

Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted, respectively, over the life of the related fixed maturity security as an adjustment to yield
using a method that approximates the effective interest method. Dividends and interest income are recognized when earned. Realized gains and
losses are included in earnings and are derived using the specific-identification method for determining the cost of securities sold.

At December 31, 2010, long-term investments carried at market value of $4,708,075 and short-term investments of approximately $145,085
were pledged by one of the Company�s subsidiaries under requirements of regulatory authorities.
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A summary of investments follows as of:

December 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

Short-term investments and bank certificates of deposit $ 145,085 $ 365,717
U.S. government sponsored enterprises 4,617,953 4,967,070
Corporate debt securities 4,012,823 3,566,448
Marketable equity securities 2,243,235 1,918,841
Other long-term investments 727,288 0

Total $ 11,746,384 $ 10,818,076

The amortized cost, fair value and gross unrealized gains or losses of U.S. sponsored enterprises and corporate debt securities available-for-sale
at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, by contractual maturity, is shown below:

Years to Maturity � December 31, 2010
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Within one year $ 1,022,943 $ 0 $ 9,980 $ 1,012,963
One to five years 5,365,295 136,961 91,481 5,410,775
Five to ten years 1,005,508 20,740 5,106 1,021,142
Over ten years 1,167,499 18,477 80 1,185,896

Total $ 8,561,245 $ 176,178 $ 106,647 $ 8,630,776

Years to Maturity � December 31, 2009
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

One to five years $ 4,501,055 $ 45,063 $ 34,560 $ 4,511,558
Five to ten years 2,325,276 3,674 220,404 2,108,546
Over ten years 918,811 0 20,771 898,040

Total $ 7,745,142 $ 48,737 $ 275,735 $ 7,518,144

The amortized cost, fair value and gross unrealized gains or losses of securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009,
by security type, is shown below:

Security Type � December 31, 2010
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value
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U.S. government sponsored enterprises $ 4,493,940 $ 129,199 $ 5,186 $ 4,617,953
Corporate debt securities 4,067,305 46,979 101,461 4,012,823
Marketable equity securities 1,978,166 350,552 85,483 2,243,235

Total $ 10,539,411 $ 526,730 $ 192,130 $ 10,874,011
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Security Type � December 31, 2009
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

U.S. government sponsored enterprises $ 5,016,183 $ 3,674 $ 52,787 $ 4,967,070
Corporate debt securities 2,728,959 45,063 222,948 2,551,074
Marketable equity securities 1,888,334 176,186 145,679 1,918,841

Total $ 9,633,476 $ 224,923 $ 421,414 $ 9,436,985

As of December 31, 2010, the Company has determined that all of the unrealized losses in available for sale securities were temporary.

The amortized cost of securities held to maturity at December 31, 2009, by security type, is shown below:

Security Type � December 31, 2009
Amortized

Cost
Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
losses

Fair
Value

Corporate debt securities $ 1,015,374 $ 3,966,476 $             0 $ 4,981,850

There were no securities held to maturity as of December 31, 2010.

There were no fundamental issues with any of these securities and the Company has the ability and intent to hold the securities until there is a
recovery in fair value. The carrying amounts of individual assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether the fair values have
declined below the carrying amounts. The Company considers internal and external information, such as credit ratings, in concluding that the
impairments are not other than temporary. The decline in value of investments (bonds) is principally driven by rate.

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of securities, aggregated by category and length of time that securities have
been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months
Gross

Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Market

Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Market

Fair Value
December 31, 2010:
U.S. government sponsored enterprises $ 5,186 $ 1,165,156 $ 0 $ 0
Corporate debt securities 11,306 1,368,312 90,155 457,325
Marketable equity securities 12,570 154,679 72,913 368,369

$ 29,062 $ 2,688,147 $ 163,068 $ 825,694

December 31, 2009:
U.S. government sponsored enterprises $ 52,787 $ 4,467,069 $ 0 $ 0
Corporate debt securities 9,604 1,162,896 213,344 327,822
Marketable equity securities 6,308 84,836 139,371 657,196
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$ 68,699 $ 5,714,801 $ 352,715 $ 985,018

The total proceeds received on sales, maturities and calls on investments amounted to $1,867,815 and $8,078,810 for the year 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The Company had realized gains and losses of $74,625 and $56,306, respectively, during 2010 and $243,446 and $605,476,
respectively, during 2009.
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(4) Fair Value Disclosures
The fair value of our investments in fixed income and equity securities is based on observable market quotations, other market observable data,
or is derived from such quotations and market observable data. The Company utilizes third party pricing servicers, brokers and internal valuation
models to determine fair value. Management gains assurance of the overall reasonableness and consistent application of the assumptions and
methodologies and compliance with accounting standards for fair value determination through our ongoing monitoring of the fair values
received or derived internally.

Level 1 inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical instruments at the measurement date (e.g., U.S. Treasury securities
and active exchange-traded equity securities). Level 2 securities are comprised of securities whose fair value was determined by a nationally
recognized pricing service using observable market inputs. Level 3 securities are comprised of (i) securities for which the pricing service is
unable to provide a fair value, (ii) securities whose fair value is determined by the pricing service based on unobservable inputs and
(iii) securities, other than securities backed by the U.S. Government, that are not rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

The following table illustrates the recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2010:

Total

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Other

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. sponsored enterprises $ 4,617,953 $ 4,617,953 $ 0 $ 0
Corporate debt securities 4,012,823 0 4,012,823 0
Marketable equity securities 2,243,235 2,243,235 0 0

Total $ 10,874,011 $ 6,861,188 $ 4,012,823 $ 0

The following table illustrates the recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2009:

Total

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Other

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. sponsored enterprises $ 4,967,070 $ 4,967,070 $ 0 $ 0
Corporate debt securities 2,551,074 0 2,551,074 0
Marketable equity securities 1,918,841 1,918,841 0 0

Total $ 9,436,985 $ 6,885,911 $ 2,551,074 $ 0
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The following table illustrates the nonrecurring fair value measurement for goodwill as of December 31, 2010:

Total

Quoted Prices in
Active
Markets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Other

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Intangible Asset:
Goodwill $ 4,622,526 $ 0 $ 0 $ 4,622,526

Total $ 4,622,526 $ 0 $ 0 $ 4,622,526

(5) Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses
The estimated liabilities for losses and loss adjustment expenses include the accumulation of estimates for losses for claims reported prior to the
balance sheet dates (�case reserves�), estimates (based upon actuarial analysis of historical data) of losses for claims incurred but not reported
(�IBNR�) and for the development of case reserves to ultimate values, and estimates of expenses for investigating, adjusting and settling all
incurred claims. Amounts reported are estimates of the ultimate costs of settlement, net of estimated salvage and subrogation. These estimated
liabilities are subject to the outcome of future events, such as changes in medical and repair costs as well as economic and social conditions that
impact the settlement of claims. Management believes that, given the inherent variability in any such estimates, the aggregate reserves are
reasonably adequate. The methods of making such estimates and for establishing the resulting reserves are reviewed and updated quarterly and
any resulting adjustments are reflected in current operations.

A summary of unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance ceded, is as follows:

December 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

Case basis $ 5,180,252 $ 6,412,373
IBNR 4,720,369 5,850,751

Total $ 9,900,621 $ 12,263,124
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Activity in the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses is summarized as follows:

2010 2009
Balance at January 1 $ 41,972,983 $ 42,580,699
Less reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses (29,709,859) (29,746,931) 

Net balance at January 1 12,263,124 12,833,768

Add losses and LAE incurred, net, related to:
Current year 22,864,149 26,002,449
Prior years 2,158,000 (754,000) 

Net losses and LAE incurred in the current year 25,022,149 25,248,449

Deduct losses and LAE paid, net, related to:
Current year (15,587,589) (16,195,132) 
Prior years (11,797,063) (9,623,961) 

Net claim payments in the current year (27,384,652) (25,819,093) 

Net balance at December 31 9,900,621 12,263,124
Plus reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses 23,410,446 29,709,859

Balance at December 31 $ 33,311,067 $ 41,972,983

The majority of the Company�s net claim payments relates to accidents occurring in the current year. As a result of changes in estimates of
insured events in prior years, the net claims and claim adjustment expenses incurred for prior years increased by $2,158,000 in 2010 reflecting
higher than anticipated losses and decreased by $754,000 for 2009 due to favorable loss development related to prior accident years. In 2010, an
increase in the number of late reported auto liability claims and an increase in the estimated severity on these, especially in the Florida market,
claims for prior accident years, particularly in the 2009 accident year, were primary contributors to the unfavorable development compared to
what was originally estimated. The favorable development in 2009 resulted from a decline in frequency, severity and a lower amount of late
reported claims for prior accident years than had been previously estimated.

(6) Reinsurance
In the normal course of business, the Company seeks to reduce its overall risk levels by obtaining reinsurance from other insurance enterprises
or reinsurers. Reinsurance premiums and reserves on reinsured business are accounted for on a basis consistent with those used in accounting for
the original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders. The Company periodically reviews the financial
condition of its reinsurers to minimize its exposure to losses from reinsurer insolvencies.
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Reinsurance assets include balances due from other insurance companies under the terms of reinsurance agreements. Amounts applicable to
ceded unearned premiums, ceded loss payments and ceded claims liabilities are reported as assets in the accompanying balance sheets. Under the
reinsurance agreements the Company has four reinsurers that are required to collateralize the reinsurance recoverable. As of December 31, 2010
three reinsurers have provided a letter of credit or secured trust accounts to provide security sufficient to satisfy
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AAIC�s obligations under the reinsurance agreement and one reinsurer has provided cash that is restricted for the purpose of providing security to
satisfy AAIC�s obligations. The Company believes the fair value of its reinsurance recoverable approximates its carrying amounts.

The impact of reinsurance on the statements of operations for the period ended December 31 is as follows:

2010 2009
Premiums written:
Direct $ 100,922,694 $ 107,028,108
Assumed (918) 220,999
Ceded (67,795,311) (71,998,755) 

Net $ 33,126,465 $ 35,250,352

Premiums earned:
Direct $ 102,619,742 $ 103,802,226
Assumed (918) 438,438
Ceded (69,247,541) (69,816,852) 

Net $ 33,371,283 $ 34,423,812

Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred:
Direct $ 86,558,567 $ 87,576,342
Assumed 37,875 460,261
Ceded (61,574,293) (62,788,154) 

Net $ 25,022,149 $ 25,248,449

The impact of reinsurance on the balance sheets as of December 31 is as follows:

2010 2009
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expense:
Direct $ 33,188,235 $ 41,814,027
Assumed 122,832 158,956
Ceded (23,410,446) (29,709,859) 

Net $ 9,900,621 $ 12,263,124

Unearned premiums:
Direct $ 34,216,544 $ 35,915,592
Assumed 564 564
Ceded (23,643,822) (25,098,051) 
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Net $ 10,573,286 $ 10,818,105

The Company received $15,355,480 in commissions on premiums ceded during 2010. Had all of the Company�s reinsurance agreements been
cancelled at December 31, 2010, the Company would have returned $5,416,780 in reinsurance commissions to its reinsurers and its reinsurers
would have returned $23,643,822 in unearned premiums to the Company. The Company paid $213 of commissions on premiums assumed
during 2010. Had all of the assumed agreements been cancelled at December 31, 2010, the Company would have received no reinsurance
commissions from its reinsurers and would have returned $564 in unearned premiums to reinsurers.
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Contingent Reinsurance Commission and Provisional Commission Reserve

The Company�s primary reinsurance contract provides ceding commissions for premiums written which are subject to adjustment. The amount of
ceding commissions, net of adjustments, is determined by the loss experience for the reinsurance agreement term. The reinsurers provide
commissions on a sliding scale with maximum and minimum achievable levels. The reinsurers pay the Company the stated provisional
commissions before adjustment. The Company adjusts the commissions based on the current loss experience for the policy year premiums. This
results in establishing a liability for the excess of provisional commissions retained compared to amounts recognized, which is subject to
variation until the ultimate loss experience is determinable.

The total liability for excess provisional commissions received as of December 31, 2010 by policy year is:

Policy Year Amount
2008 $ 17,917
2009 1,858,103
2010 1,413,252

Total $ 3,289,272

(7) Borrowings
Rovolving Line of Credit

On June 30, 2010, the Company entered into a First Amendment Agreement (the �First Amendment�) to the Loan Agreement between the
Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (as successor in interest by merger to Wachovia Bank, N.A.) (The �Lender�). The First Amendment
amends the Loan Agreement, dated July 17, 2009, between the Company and the Lender (the �Loan Agreement�).

The First Amendment extends the maturity date for the facility to July 16, 2011. The proceeds of the facility may be used for funding certain
permitted acquisitions, funding short-term loans to the Company�s wholly owned subsidiary, AAIC, or for working capital or general corporate
needs in the ordinary course of business. The credit facility is secured by a pledge of the Company�s ownership interests in two of the Company�s
subsidiaries, TrustWay and MGA, and is guaranteed by the same entities. In addition, TrustWay pledged its ownership interest in TrustWay
T.E.A.M., Inc., which is also a guarantor.

The Loan Agreement and the First Amendment include customary covenants, including financial covenants regarding minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio and minimum net worth. As of December 31, 2010, management believes the Company was in compliance with all these
covenants. The First Amendment provides that the facility shall be repaid in full and no loans under the facility may be outstanding for at least
one period of 30 consecutive days during each 12-month period in which the Loan Agreement is in effect. In addition, the Company�s minimum
fixed charge coverage ratio, which was 1.35 under the Loan Agreement, decreased to 1.10 for each of the fiscal quarters ended June 30, 2010
and September 30, 2010 and increased to 1.25 for each subsequent fiscal quarter. The interest rate is 3.00% plus 90-day LIBOR (3.3003% at
December 31, 2010) due and payable monthly. As of December 31, 2010, there is $1.5 million in borrowings outstanding under the credit
agreement.
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Notes Payable, Related Party

The Company had a contractual commitment in association with long-term debt owed to its current Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
amount of $483,606, including accrued interest as of December 30, 2009, which was paid off on June 30, 2010. The promissory note was
established to provide working capital to the Company.

Other Notes Payable

The Company had two other notes payable outstanding as of December 31, 2010. First, on January 14, 2008 the Company issued a note payable
in the amount of $276,250 with Information Distribution & Marketing, Inc. for the purchase of a software package that grants the Company a
perpetual license to the source code and the ability to develop derivatives and advance the product to meet business demands and react to
changing market conditions. The note requires monthly principal and interest payments beginning in January 2008 and matures in November
2012 with an interest rate of 2.8871% per annum. The outstanding principal balance on the note at December 31, 2010 is $115,480.

Second, as a result of the acquisition of First Choice Insurance Agency effective February 26, 2009 the Company issued an unsecured
promissory note payable to the former owner in the amount of $115,200 which carries an interest rate of 5%, with four equal yearly installments
of principal and interest payments beginning February 26, 2010. The outstanding balance on the note at December 31, 2010 is $57,600. Further,
the Company had accrued interest of $2,340 related to its line of credit.

Junior Subordinated Debentures

On December 22, 2005, the Company, through a newly-formed Delaware statutory trust, AssuranceAmerica Capital Trust I (the �Trust�),
consummated the private placement of 5,000 of the Trust�s floating rate Capital Securities, with a liquidation amount of $1,000 per capital
security (the �Capital Securities�). In connection with the Trust�s issuance and sale of the Capital Securities, the Company purchased from the
Trust 155 of the Trust�s floating rate Common Securities, with a liquidation amount of $1,000 per common security. The Trust used the proceeds
from the issuance and sale of the Capital Securities and the Common Securities to purchase $5,155,000 in aggregate principal amount of the
floating rate junior subordinated debentures of the Company (the �Debentures�). The Debentures bear interest at a floating rate of three-month
LIBOR plus 5.75% per annum, reset quarterly. The Debentures and Capital Securities mature on December 31, 2035, but may be redeemed at
par beginning December 31, 2010 if and to the extent the Company exercises its right to redeem the Debentures. The Capital Securities require
quarterly distributions by the Trust to the holders of the Capital Securities, at a floating rate of three-month LIBOR plus 5.75% per annum, reset
quarterly. Distributions are cumulative and will accrue from the date of original issuance but may be deferred for a period of up to 20
consecutive quarterly interest payment periods if the Company exercises its right under the Indenture to defer the payment of interest on the
Debentures. The Company has guaranteed the obligations of the Trust.

On March 10, 2009, AAIC had purchased all of the Capital Securities issued by the Trust at a discounted price of $1,000,000 from the
non-affiliated holder of those securities. The discount was to be accreted to interest income over the remaining life of the Capital Securities
using the interest method. The purchase resulted in an increase in our investment portfolio for redeemable preferred stock in the amount of
$1,001,089. On December 30, 2010, AAIC issued a dividend in-kind to its parent Company of all the Capital Securities issued by the Trust in
the amount of $1,001,089 and the Company extinguished the related junior subordinated debentures of $4,988,513, which resulted in a gain of
$3,509,845.
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Scheduled Maturities of Long-term Debt

The aggregate annual maturities of payments due on long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2010 are as follows:

Amount
2011 $ 59,370
2012 87,250
2013 28,800

Total $ 175,420

(8) Income Taxes
The provision for federal and state income taxes for the years ended are as follows:

December 31,
2010 2009

Current taxes $ 168,780 $ (2,137) 
Deferred 872,519 450,952

Total provision for income taxes $ 1,041,299 $ 448,815

The provision for income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations differed from the statutory rate of 34% as follows:

2010 2009
Income before income taxes $ 1,933,876 $ 896,562
Income tax expense at statutory rate 657,518 304,831

Tax effect of:
Tax exempt interest income (10,561) (32,753) 
Incentive stock option expense 139,623 113,523
Nondeductible goodwill 137,579 0
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 85,190 48,660
Other, net 31,950 14,554

Total income tax expense $ 1,041,299 $ 448,815
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The balance sheets reflect net deferred income tax asset amounts that resulted from temporary differences as of December 31 as follows:

2010 2009
Deferred income tax assets:
Discounting of loss reserves $ 207,000 $ 247,000
Federal operating loss carry-forward 1,033,000 815,000
Goodwill 1,838,000 1,615,000
Unearned premium reserves 793,000 811,000
Capital losses carryforward 274,000 281,000
Unrealized losses on securities available for sale 0 75,000
Other 13,000 6,000

Gross deferred tax assets 4,158,000 3,925,000

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Gain on extinguishment of debt 1,316,000 0
Deferred acquisition costs 857,000 922,000
Unrealized gains on securities available for sale 125,000 0
Depreciation 22,000 19,000

Gross deferred tax liabilities 2,320,000 941,000

Net deferred tax assets $ 1,838,000 $ 2,909,000

ASC 740, �Accounting for Income Taxes�, requires that a valuation allowance be established when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of
a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which those temporary differences are deductible. In making this determination, management considers all available
positive and negative evidence affecting specific deferred tax assets, including the Company�s past and anticipated future performance, the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities and the implementation of tax planning strategies. Objective positive evidence is necessary to support a
conclusion that a valuation allowance is not needed for all or a portion of the deferred tax assets when significant negative evidence exists.

The Company has net operating loss carry-forwards that may be offset against future taxable income and tax credits that may be used against
future income taxes. If not used, the carry-forwards will expire in varying amounts between 2019 and 2028. The loss carry-forwards at
December 31, 2010 were $2,753,924. Utilization of part of the net operating losses carried forward will be limited under Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code as the Company experienced an ownership change greater than 50% effective April 1, 2003 and on January 1, 2006 for
carry-forwards related to the acquisition of The Insurance Center, Inc. Accordingly, certain net operating losses may not be realizable in future
years due to this limitation.

The Company has unused net operating loss carry-forwards available to offset future taxable income as follows:

Expires 2019 $ 324,398
Expires 2020 920,162
Expires 2021 124,456
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Expires 2024 241,662
Expires 2025 17,487
Expires 2028 1,123,539
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F-22

Edgar Filing: ASSURANCEAMERICA CORP - Form 10-K

Index to Financial Statements 75



Table of Contents

Index to Financial Statements

ASSURANCEAMERICA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � (Continued)

ASC 740 �Accounting for Income Taxes� prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The evaluation of a tax position is a two-step process. The Company
must determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related
appeals or litigation, based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold, the Company should presume that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority. A tax position that
meets the more-likely-than-not threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlement.

Based on the judgment of management and its tax advisors, all items included in the inventory of tax positions have been determined to meet the
more-likely-than-not standard and have been included at full value in the financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2010 and
2009.

(9) Capital Stock
Common Stock

During 2010 and 2009, the Company issued 350,000 and 190,476 shares of common stock, $.01 par value to its board of directors, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

In April of 2010, the Company�s shareholders approved a new Incentive Plan (the �2010 Plan�). The Company�s 2010 Stock Option Plans provides
for the granting of stock options to officers, key employees, directors, consultants, independent contractors and other agents at the discretion of
the Board of Directors. The Company believes that such awards better align the interests of its associates with those of its shareholders. Options
become exercisable at various dates, generally vesting over a five-year continuous period of service and have similar contractual terms. Certain
employment agreements may provide for accelerated vesting if there is a change in control of the Company (as defined in the Plan). Generally,
options are issued with exercise prices no less than the fair market value of the common stock at the time of the grant (or in the case of a
ten-percent-or-greater stockholder, 110 percent of fair market value). The aggregate number of common shares authorized under the new 2010
Plan is currently 2,000,000. The common stock is reserved and available for issuance pursuant to awards granted to participants under the plan.

The Company�s Prior 2000 Incentive Plan (the �Prior Plan�) has an aggregate total of 8,500,000 authorized common shares, but no additional
awards will be granted under this Plan, as it expired in June 2010. As of December 31, 2010, there were 6,736,555 shares of the Company�s
common stock subject to outstanding awards under the Prior Plan.
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The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model using the
assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities of the Company�s stock. The Company uses
historical data to estimate expected term and option forfeitures within the valuation model. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual
life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The Company does not provide for any expected
dividends or discount for post-vesting restrictions in the model.

2010 2009
Expected volatility 160% - 168% 106% - 109%
Weighted average volatility 163% 107%
Risk-free interest rate 1.91 - 2.59% 2.71 - 3.85%
Expected term (in years) 6.26 5.0
Expected forfeitures 6.7% 6.6%

A summary of all stock option activity during 2010 and 2009 follows:

2010 2009

Options Outstanding
Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
Beginning of year 7,789,721 $ 0.56 6,230,008 $ 0.66
Add (deduct):
Granted 1,237,000 $ 0.24 2,229,890 $ 0.27
Forfeited (992,570) $ 0.44 (670,177) $ 0.57
Expired (435,596) $ 0.60 0 $ 0

End of year 7,598,555 $ 0.49 7,789,721 $ 0.56

Exercisable, end of year 3,614,260 $ 0.60 2,918,634 $ 0.68

The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted during the twelve-months ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 was
$0.2350 and $0.2739, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and of options exercisable at December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009 was $248,697 and $318,626, respectively, and those options have weighted-average contractual terms of 6.7 years and 6.6
years, respectively. As of December 31, 2010 there was $792,705 of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options and
this cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.6 years.

Total compensation cost for share-based payment arrangements recognized for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009 was $410,658 and $333,890, respectively.
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For options granted prior to January 1, 2006, the Company continues to follow the intrinsic value method, but discloses the pro forma effects on
net income (loss) had the fair value of these options been expensed, as follows:

For the Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

        2010                2009        
Net income as reported $ 892,577 $ 447,747
Compensation effect, net of tax effect 0 (75,491) 

Pro forma net income $ 892,577 $ 372,256

Basic and diluted net income (loss):
As reported � Basic $ 0.014 $ 0.007
Pro forma � Basic $ 0.014 $ 0.006
As reported � Diluted $ 0.014 $ 0.007
Pro forma � Diluted $ 0.014 $ 0.006

The following fully vested stock options and stock options expected to vest were outstanding or exercisable as of December 31, 2010:

Options
Outstanding

Options
Exercisable

Number of shares 7,598,555 3,614,260
Weighted average exercise price $0.49 $0.60
Aggregate intrinsic value $248,697 $71,123
Weighted average remaining contractual term 6.66 years 5.46 years

The following stock options were outstanding or exercisable as of December 31, 2010:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices
Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$.11 < $1.00 7,096,055 6.73 years $ 0.41 3,265,260 $ 0.50
$1.00 < $1.81 502,500 5.64 years $ 1.53 349,000 $ 1.59

7,598,555 6.66 years $ 0.49 3,614,260 $ 0.60

(10) Risk
The following is a description of the most significant risks facing the Company and how it mitigates those risks:
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(I) LEGAL/REGULATORY RISKS � the risk that changes in the regulatory environment in which an insurer operates will create additional
expenses not anticipated by the insurer in pricing its products. That is, regulatory initiatives designed to reduce insurer profits, restrict
underwriting practices and risk classifications, mandate rate reductions and refunds, and new legal theories or insurance company insolvencies
through guaranty fund assessments may create costs for the insurer beyond those recorded in
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the financial statements. The Company attempts to mitigate this risk by monitoring proposed regulatory legislation and by assessing the impact
of new laws. As the Company writes business only in ten states, it is more exposed to this risk than some of its more geographically balanced
competitors.

(II) CREDIT RISK � the risk that issuers of securities owned by the Company will default or that other parties, including reinsurers to whom
business is ceded, which owe the Company money, will not pay. The Company attempts to minimize this risk by adhering to a conservative
investment strategy, maintaining reinsurance agreements with financially sound reinsurers with an A.M. Best rating of �B++� or better, and by
requiring a letter of credit or trust fund to secure reinsurance recoverables as well as provide for any amounts deemed uncollectible. As of
December 31, 2010, there were no amounts deemed uncollectible.

(III) INTEREST RATE RISK � the risk that interest rates will change and cause a decrease in the value of an insurer�s investments. To the extent
that liabilities come due more quickly than assets mature, an insurer might have to sell assets prior to maturity and potentially recognize a gain
or a loss. The Company, in accordance with its investment policy, manages its investment portfolio duration according to expected liability
duration needs. Since the Company�s liabilities are predominantly short-term in nature, the investment portfolio is also short-term duration.

Concentration of Risk

As of December 31, 2010 the Company�s strategy is to spread its risks geographically in order to mitigate its risk in a specific state where it is
dependent on the economies in those states. Hence, the Company operates in Alabama, Arizona, Indiana, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana,
Mississippi, South Carolina, Texas, Virginia and plans to enter additional states in the future.

The Company�s profitability depends on its ability to determine rates accurately. However, it is difficult to price accurately due to inflation on
medical care, auto parts and repair services costs. If the Company under priced its risks, this could have a negative impact on its profit margins,
or over pricing could reduce sales volume and lose our competitiveness and affect profitability as well.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The primary credit risk for the Company is with its investment portfolio and balances due from reinsurers. The Company�s investment committee
monitors credit risk to ensure risk is minimized.

Additionally, the Company maintains a relationship with seven reinsurers. The Company performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit
standing of each of these companies.

Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions

To retain its certificate of authority, the South Carolina Insurance Code requires that AAIC maintain capital and surplus at a minimum of
$3.0 million. At December 31, 2010, AAIC�s statutory capital and surplus was approximately $12.1 million. AAIC is required to adhere to a
prescribed net premium-to-surplus ratio and risked based capital levels. At December 31, 2010, AAIC was in compliance with this requirement.

Under the South Carolina Insurance Code, AAIC must receive prior regulatory approval to pay a dividend in an amount exceeding ten percent of
policyholder surplus or net income, minus realized capital gains, whichever
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is greater. On December 30, 2010, AAIC declared a dividend in-kind of its Trust Preferred Security to its parent Company in the amount of $1.0
million in order to extinguish the Junior Subordinated Debt carried by the parent.

The Company is required to comply with the NAIC risk-based capital (�RBC�) requirements. RBC is a method of measuring the amount of capital
appropriate for an insurance company to support its overall business operations and to ensure that it has an acceptably low expectation of
becoming financially impaired in light of its size and risk profile. NAIC�s RBC standards are used by regulators to determine appropriate
regulatory actions relating to insurers that show signs of weak or deteriorating condition and are evaluated on at least an annual basis at the end
of each year. The model law provides for increasing levels of regulatory intervention as the ratio of an insurer�s total adjusted capital and surplus
decreases relative to its risk-based capital, culminating with mandatory control of the operations of the insurer by the domiciliary insurance
department at the so-called mandatory control level. As of December 31, 2010, based upon calculations using the appropriate NAIC formula,
AAIC�s total adjusted capital is in excess of ratios which would require any form of corrective actions on our part or action on the part of the
regulators.

The NAIC Insurance Regulatory Information System (�IRIS�) is part of a collection of analytical tools designed to provide state insurance
regulators with an integrated approach to screening and analyzing the financial condition of insurance companies operating in their respective
states. IRIS is intended to assist state insurance regulators in targeting resources to those insurers in greatest need of regulatory attention. IRIS
consists of two phases: statistical and analytical. In the statistical phase, the NAIC database generates key financial ratio results based on
financial information obtained from insurers� annual statutory statements. The analytical phase is a review of the annual statements, financial
ratios and other automated solvency tools. The primary goal of the analytical phase is to identify companies that appear to require immediate
regulatory attention. A ratio result falling outside the usual range of IRIS ratios is not considered a failing result; rather, unusual values are
viewed as part of the regulatory early monitoring system. Furthermore, in some years, it may not be unusual for financially sound companies to
have several ratios with results outside the usual ranges. An insurance company may fall out of the usual range for one or more ratios because of
specific transactions that are in themselves immaterial. As of December 31, 2010, AAIC had three IRIS ratios outside the usual range. The ratios
outside the range are attributable to the Company�s heavy dependence on reinsurance and its impact on the liquidity ratio as well. The ratios were
further impacted by the percentage of unfavorable loss development for prior years. Management does not expect any regulatory action as a
result of these results outside of the usual range.

(11) Commitments
Operating Leases

The Company has entered into leases primarily for office space and certain equipment, classified as operating leases. The future minimum rental
payments required under long-term non-cancelable leases are summarized as follows:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2011 $ 1,557,655
2012 1,397,476
2013 728,676
2014 671,360
2015 626,617
Thereafter 2,366,785

$ 7,348,569
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Rent expense totaled $1,505,041 and $1,539,598 for 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company�s associates may participate in the AssuranceAmerica 401(k) defined contribution retirement plan. Under the plan, the Company
can elect to make discretionary contributions. The Company contributed $127,019 and $100,241 to this plan during 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The plan currently matches 33.3% on the first 6% of employee earnings. The eligibility requirements are 21 years of age, 6 months of service
and full time employment.

(12) Business Combinations
On June 16, 2010 the Company purchased the assets of Atlantic Southeastern Insurance Group, LLC and James T. Moore Company for an
estimated price of $144,000. The Company paid $100,000 in cash and the balance of $44,000 will be paid on the last day of the thirteenth month
following the closing date. The acquired companies will offer commercial insurance through the retail agencies. The Company assigned $89,000
to the purchased book of business to be amortized over a ten-year period and $55,000 to goodwill, which is valued in accordance with ASC 350.

On March 26, 2010 the Company purchased the assets of NexTT Solutions, LLC for an estimated purchase price of $243,000. The Company
paid $25,000 as a down payment and the remaining balance will be paid once the renewals are finalized. The purchase price reflects $211,275
for its 2009 renewals in 2010 and 2010 renewals in 2011, which is subject to change and will be finalized in 2011, and $31,275 was paid to
NexTT for the rights to its agency software program. NexTT Solutions offers sports injury solutions to colleges and universities through one of
our TrustWay insurance agencies. The Company assigned $211,275 to the purchased book of business to be amortized over a ten-year period,
which is valued in accordance with ASC 350.

On July 28, 2009 the Company purchased the agency book of business of Hayes Insurance for cash of $5,400. The Company assigned the full
amount of $5,400 to goodwill.

On February 27, 2009, the Company acquired the assets of First Choice Insurance, LLC located in Montgomery, Alabama for $28,800 in cash
and promissory note in the amount of $115,200 carrying an interest rate of 8% for a total purchase of $144,000. The Company assigned $54,000
to the purchased book of business to be amortized over a ten-year period, $28,000 to a non-competitive covenant to be amortized over a
five-year period and $64,000 to goodwill, which is valued in accordance with ASC 350.

(13) Net Income Per Share
Basic and diluted income per common share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Potential common shares not included in the calculations of net income per share for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, because
their inclusion would be anti-dilutive, are as follows:

2010 2009
Stock options 3,984,295 7,625,586

Edgar Filing: ASSURANCEAMERICA CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 83



F-28

Edgar Filing: ASSURANCEAMERICA CORP - Form 10-K

Index to Financial Statements 84



Table of Contents

Index to Financial Statements

ASSURANCEAMERICA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � (Continued)

The reconciliation of the amounts used in the computation of both basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Net Income

Average
Shares

Outstanding
Per Share
Amount

For the year ended December 31, 2010:
Net income � basic $ 892,577 65,467,508 $ 0.014

Effect of dilutive stock options 0 450,285

Net income � diluted $ 892,577 65,917,793 $ 0.014

For the year ended December 31, 2009:
Net income� basic $ 447,747 65,120,526 $ 0.007

Effect of dilutive stock options 0 164,135

Net income� diluted $ 447,747 65,284,661 $ 0.007

(14) Related Party Transactions
In 2005, the Company�s Chairman originally loaned the Company approximately $6.2 million. The notes to the Chairman required annual
principal payments of the greater of $500,000 or 25% of free cash flow (net income after tax plus non-cash items minus working capital) and
ending in June 2010. The remaining principal and interest owed to the Chairman as of December 31, 2009 was $472,463 and $11,143,
respectively. The balance of the loan was fully paid off on June 30, 2010. The promissory notes issued were unsecured and outstanding amounts
under these promissory notes held by the Company accrued interest at an annual rate of 8%.

AAIC and MGA are party to a Management Agreement. Under the agreement, AAIC will appoint MGA as its managing general agent in the
states where it is licensed to do business. Under the terms of the agreement, MGA provides all of the marketing, underwriting, accounting,
product management, legal, policyholder administration and claims functions for AAIC. As compensation for its services, MGA receives the
amount of ceding commission AAIC receives from its reinsurers. MGA also pays AAIC a fronting fee. Additionally, MGA receives various fees
related to insurance transactions associated with these policies that vary according to state insurance laws and regulations.

TrustWay is comprised of 50 retail insurance agencies with 31 locations in Florida, 14 in Alabama and 5 in Georgia. TrustWay has been
appointed by AAIC to sell non-standard personal automobile insurance. TrustWay receives commissions from MGA and various fees from
insureds associated with the sale of these policies.

The Company provides executive management services, including finance, audit and legal, to MGA and TrustWay. The Company charges a
management fee to these subsidiaries in exchange for these services.

The Company has entered into a tax sharing agreement between AAIC and the parent company on a statutory basis. The operating results for
AAIC are included in the consolidated income tax return filed by the Company. The income tax provision is computed separately for AAIC.
TrustWay and MGA are not tax paying entities for federal income tax purposes and their results are consolidated with the Company�s tax return.
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(15) Supplemental Cash Flow Information

2010 2009
Cash paid (received) during the year:
Interest $ 354,395 $ 458,500
Income tax refund $ (3,455) $ (2,325) 

The Company recorded net unrealized gains on investment securities in the amount of $331,931 and $566,356, net of taxes, for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

On June 16, 2010 the Company paid $100,000 cash for the purchased the assets of Atlantic Southeastern Insurance Group, LLC and James T.
Moore Company.

On March 26, 2010 the Company paid a $25,000 down payment on the purchased assets of NexTT Solutions, LLC.

On July 28, 2009 the Company purchased the agency book of business of Hayes Insurance for cash of $5,400.

On March 1, 2009 the Company purchased the assets of First Choice Insurance, LLC for cash of $28,800 and as part of the purchase agreement
the Company issued a note payable in the amount of $115,200.

On February 27, 2009 the Company sold an agency book of business to AA Insurance Center for cash of $30,000.

The following table illustrates the composition of acquisitions for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Fair value of assets acquired, including identifiable intangibles $ 332,000 $ 85,400
Goodwill 55,000 64,000
Cash paid to sellers (125,000) (34,200) 

Payable due to seller $ 262,000 $ 115,200

(16) FASB Accounting Standards Updates
In December 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2010-29 (�ASU 2010-29�), under topic 805 Business Combinations, the
objective of this update is to address diversity in practice about the interpretation of the pro forma revenue and earnings disclosure requirements
for business combinations. Paragraph 805-10-50-2(h) requires a public entity to disclose pro forma information for business combinations that
occurred in the current reporting period. The disclosures include pro forma revenue and earnings of the combined entity for the current reporting
period as though the acquisition date for all business combinations that occurred during the year had been as of the beginning of the annual
reporting period. If comparative financial statements are presented, the pro forma revenue and earnings of the combined entity for the
comparable prior reporting period should be reported as though the acquisition date for all business combinations that occurred during the
current year had been as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period. The amendments in this update affect any public
entity as defined by Topic 805 that enters into business
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combinations that are material on an individual or aggregate basis. The update also specifies that if a public entity presents comparative financial
statements, the entity should disclose revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combination(s) that occurred during
the current year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only. The amendments are effective
prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after December 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect any impact to its financial statements and related
disclosures.

In December 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2010-28 (�ASU 2010-28�), under Topic 350 on goodwill and other
intangible assets. When a goodwill impairment test is performed (either on an annual or interim basis), an entity must assess whether the
carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value (Step 1). If it does, an entity must perform an additional test to determine whether
goodwill has been impaired and to calculate the amount of that impairment (Step 2). The objective of this update is to address questions about
entities with reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts because some entities concluded that Step 1 of the test is passed in those
circumstances because the fair value of their reporting unit will generally be greater than zero. As a result of that conclusion, some constituents
raised concerns that Step 2 of the test is not performed despite factors indicating that goodwill may be impaired. The amendments in this update
do not provide guidance on how to determine the carrying amount or measure the fair value of the reporting unit. The amendments in this update
affect all entities that have recognized goodwill and have one or more reporting units whose carrying amount for purposes of performing Step 1
of the goodwill impairment test is zero or negative.

For those reporting units, an entity is required to perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely than not that a goodwill
impairment exists. In determining whether it is more likely than not that a goodwill impairment exists, an entity should consider whether there
are any adverse qualitative factors indicating that an impairment may exist. The qualitative factors are consistent with the existing guidance and
examples in paragraph 350-20-35-30, which requires that goodwill of a reporting unit be tested for impairment between annual tests if an event
occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. Upon
adoption of the amendments, an entity with reporting units that have carrying amounts that are zero or negative is required to assess whether it is
more likely than not that the reporting units� goodwill is impaired. If the entity determines that it is more likely than not that the goodwill of one
or more of its reporting units is impaired, the entity should perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test for those reporting unit(s). For public
entities, the amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2010.
Early adoption is not permitted. The Company is currently assessing this amendment, but does not expect any impact to the financial statements
and related disclosures.

In October 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2010-26 (�ASU 2010-26�), Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring
or Renewing Insurance Contracts (Topic 944). The objective of this update is to address diversity in practice regarding the interpretation of
which costs relating to the acquisition of new or renewal insurance contracts qualify for deferral. The current definition of acquisition costs in
the Master Glossary of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification� is �costs that vary with and are primarily related to the acquisition of
insurance contracts.� Costs that meet that definition are typically recognized as assets and are commonly referred to as deferred acquisition costs.
Deferred acquisition costs are amortized over time using amortization methods dependent upon the nature of the underlying insurance product
(that is, proportional to revenues, based on a contract�s estimated gross profit, or based on a contract�s estimated gross margin). Other costs that do
not vary with and are not primarily related to the acquisition of new and renewal insurance contracts � such as those relating to investment
management, general administration, and policy maintenance � are
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charged to expense as incurred. As a result of the diversity in practice relating to the interpretation of which costs qualify as deferrable
acquisition costs within the insurance industry, certain stakeholders initially raised the question of whether advertising costs meet the definition
of acquisition costs.

However, interpretation of the phrase vary with and are primarily related to raises a broader conceptual issue that also applies to other types of
costs; therefore, application of the amendments in this update are not limited to advertising costs. The amendments in this update affect
insurance entities that are within the scope of Topic 944, Financial Services � Insurance (which includes but is not limited to stock life insurance
entities, mutual life insurance entities, and property and liability insurance entities), that incur costs in the acquisition of new and renewal
insurance contracts. The amendments in this update specify that the following costs incurred in the acquisition of new and renewal contracts
should be capitalized in accordance with the amendments in this update: (1) Incremental direct costs of contract acquisition. Incremental direct
costs are those costs that result directly from and are essential to the contract transaction and would not have been incurred by the insurance
entity had the contract transactions not occurred. (2) Certain costs related directly to the following acquisition activities performed by the insurer
for the contract: (a) Underwriting, (b) Policy issuance and processing, (c) Medical and inspection, (d) Sales force contract selling.

The costs related directly to those activities include only the portion of an employee�s total compensation (excluding any compensation that is
capitalized as incremental direct costs of contract acquisition) and payroll-related fringe benefits related directly to time spent performing those
activities for actual acquired contracts and other costs related directly to those activities that would not have been incurred if the contract had not
been acquired. Advertising costs should be included in deferred acquisition costs only if the capitalization criteria in the direct-response
advertising guidance in Subtopic 340-20, Other Assets and Deferred Costs � Capitalized Advertising Costs, are met. If those criteria are met, the
direct-response advertising costs should then be included as deferred acquisition costs for classification, subsequent measurement, and premium
deficiency purposes in accordance with Topic 944. If the capitalization criteria in Subtopic 340-20 are not met, advertising costs are not included
as deferred acquisition costs and should be accounted for in accordance with the guidance in Subtopic 720-35, Other Expenses � Advertising
Costs. All other acquisition-related costs � including costs incurred by the insurer for soliciting potential customers, market research, training,
administration, unsuccessful acquisition or renewal efforts, and product development � should be charged to expense as incurred. Administrative
costs, rent, depreciation, occupancy, equipment, and all other general overhead costs are considered indirect costs and should be charged to
expense as incurred. If the initial application of the amendments in this update results in the capitalization of acquisition costs that had not been
capitalized previously by an entity, the entity may elect not to capitalize those types of costs. The amendments in this update are effective for
fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The amendments in this update should be applied
prospectively upon adoption. Retrospective application to all prior periods presented upon the date of adoption also is permitted, but not
required. Early adoption is permitted, but only at the beginning of an entity�s annual reporting period. The Company is currently assessing the
impact that this update will have on the results of operations, financial position and disclosures.

(17) Segment Reporting
The Company�s subsidiaries are each unique operating entities performing a separate business function. AAIC, a property and casualty insurance
company, focuses on writing nonstandard automobile business in the states of Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Indiana, Louisiana,
Mississippi, South Carolina, Texas and Virginia. MGA markets AAIC�s policies through more than 2700 independent agencies in these states.
MGA provides all of the underwriting, accounting, product management, legal, policyholder administration and claims functions for AAIC and
two unaffiliated carriers related to the non-standard automobile insurance policies
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produced in Florida and Texas. The Company also provides claims services for one unaffiliated MGA in Florida and receives a fronting fee on
this business. MGA receives various fees related to insurance transactions that vary according to state insurance laws and regulations. TrustWay
is comprised of 50 retail insurance agencies that focus on selling nonstandard automobile policies and related coverages in Alabama, Florida and
Georgia. TrustWay receives commissions and various fees associated with the sale of the products and services from its appointing insurance
carriers.

The Company evaluates profitability based on pretax income. Pretax income (loss) for each segment is defined as the revenues less the segment�s
operating expenses including depreciation, amortization, and interest. Following are the operating results for the Company�s various segments
and an overview of segment assets:

MGA TrustWay AAIC
Holding
Company Eliminations Consolidated

(In thousands)
2010
Revenues
External customer $ 25,639 $ 6,574 $ 34,189 $ 3,510 $ � $ 69,912
Intersegment 6,897 1,593 3,290 3,391 (15,171) �
Income
Segment pretax income (loss) 1,776 (3,626) 445 3,339 � 1,934
Assets
Segment assets $ 7,931 $ 9,268 $ 117,667 $ 21,841 $ (28,273) $ 128,434
2009
Revenues
External customer $ 26,233 $ 5,865 $ 34,894 $ � $ � $ 66,992
Intersegment 7,302 2,526 3,487 2,844 (16,159) �
Income
Segment pretax income (loss) 1,883 (2,329) 2,010 (667) � 897
Assets
Segment assets $ 15,661 $ 10,881 $ 125,389 $ 24,535 $ (35,320) $ 141,146
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